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Section 20,500
Governmental Audit Engagement Checklist

(For Financial Statements With Periods
Ending on or After December 15, 2012)

Instructions for Use of Checklist

This checklist was developed for use by reviewers of audits of state and local governments that are subject to the
accounting and financial reporting requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). It
should be used in conjunction with other guidance materials issued to implement the peer review programs of the
AICPA. Questions regarding these instructions or any other materials should be directed to AICPA Peer Review at
919.402.4502.

The questions in this checklist emphasize reporting matters and general procedures ordinarily performed by an inde-
pendent auditor in the audit of financial statements of state and local governmental units. This checklist can be used in
reviewing the audit of the basic financial statements, the comprehensive annual financial report, or component unit
financial statements. The reviewer, however, should recognize that this checklist does not address certain items con-
tained in the comprehensive annual financial report, such as the introductory section and statistical information, and is
not intended to be an all-inclusive document containing all disclosure and audit procedures related to audits of state
and local governments. It should be used in conjunction with various reference materials dealing with reporting dis-
closure and audit procedures to sufficiently evaluate state and local government audits. These additional materials
include the AICPA financial reporting practice aids, AICPA Checklists and Illustrative Financial Statements State
and Local Governments or other similarly comprehensive disclosure materials, and the AICPA Audit and Accounting
Guide State and Local Governments (as of March 1, 2013). Presentation guidance may be found in Section 2200 of
GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

The questions have been derived principally from relevant pronouncements of the Auditing Standards Board, GASB,
and the AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide State and Local Governments (as of March 1, 2013). This is a highly
summarized checklist. Reviewers may wish to consult the professional standards cited for detailed information about
the requirements. Bullet points are generally batched into one question on this checklist. The reviewer should weigh
each bullet point separately and in the aggregate when concluding whether the professional standards requirement was
met in all material respects. All “No” answers must be thoroughly explained.

The AU-C sections contain application materials that follow the requirements section and are numbered using an A-
prefix. The application materials contain guidance that is not in itself required but is relevant to the proper application
of the requirements of the AU-C section. If a reviewed firm does not perform the procedures outlined in the application
materials, the reviewer should determine if the procedures that were performed are sufficient to meet the requirements.
Citations from application materials are noted with an **.

Notes to Reviewer: Reviews of state and local government audit engagements may require use of one or more peer
review engagement checklists. Refer to paragraphs .08—.10 of section 20,100, which contain a matrix for guidance
in selecting the appropriate checklist(s) for such engagements.

Reviewers of engagements in which the auditor was engaged to conduct the audit in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards (the Yellow Book) should also complete the appropriate Supplemental Checklist for Review of
Audit Engagements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards (PRP sec. 22,110). In addition,
reviewers of engagements in which the auditor was engaged to perform a single audit over federal awards should also
complete the Supplemental Checklist for Review of Single Audit Act/A-133 Engagements (PRP sec. 22,100).
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Reviewers of audits of governmental entities’ U.S. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) projects should not com-
plete the Supplemental Checklist for Review of Audits of For-Profit Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Engage-
ments, but instead should complete the Supplemental Checklist for Review of Single Audit Act/A-133 Engagements if
the auditor was engaged to perform such an audit. Reviewers should adapt this checklist to fit specific engagements.

This checklist has been updated to reflect authoritative pronouncements and interpretations that are issued and effec-
tive as of September 30, 2013, and has been significantly revised to reflect the clarified auditing standards, the 2011
revision of the Yellow Book, and other information applicable to state and local governments, including GASB
Statements

e No. 66, Technical Corrections—2012—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62

e No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities

e No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions—an amendment
of GASB Statement No. 53

e No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position

The AICPA established the Governmental Audit Quality Center (GAQC) (www.aicpa.org/GAQC) as a voluntary firm
membership center to enhance quality of audits performed under the Yellow Book, or governmental audits. GAQC firm
members have agreed, as a condition of membership, to have employees of a GAQC member firm review the gov-
ernmental audits selected for its peer review (note that for purposes of the GAQC, governmental audits are all audits
and attestation engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards). To avoid misunderstandings with
firms that are GAQC members, it is advisable that team captains ensure they include a GAQC firm member. This
requirement can be met with a team captain or team member whose firm is a member of GAQC.

Explanation of References:

AAG-SLV AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide State and Local Governments (as of March 1, 2013)

AU-C Reference to section number for clarified SASs in AICPA Professional Standards

ET Reference to section number in AICPA Code of Professional Conduct in AICPA Professional
Standards

GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (as of June 30, 2012)

QC Reference to section number for Statements on Quality Control Standards in AICPA Professional
Standards

SAS AICPA Statement on Auditing Standards
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ENGAGEMENT PROFILE
Engagement Code No. Office
Owner/Partner Date of Financial Statements’
Manager Date of Report
Engagement Quality Control Reviewer” Date Report Released
This engagement involves reporting on:
[] Basic Financial Statements [] Individual Fund or Department
[] Comprehensive Annual Financial Financial Statements
Statements Report (CAFR) [ ] Component Unit Financial Statements (CUFS)
[] Primary Government Only Financial [] Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
Statements on Compliance and Other Matters Based on
[] Special Reports an Audit Performed in Accordance With
[] Compliance for Each Major Program; Government Auditing Standards (See
Internal Control Over Compliance; Supplemental Yellow Book Checklist)
and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards [] Limited Reporting Engagement
Required by OMB Circular A-133 (Complete [] Other, explain:

Single Audit Data on next page)

Is this engagement part of a group audit? Yes [_] No [ ]

Were other auditors involved in this engagement? Yes [ ] No []

At the time the report/financial statement(s) on the client’s current year was issued/released, were there billed or un-
billed fees, or note(s) receivable arising from such fees, that remained unpaid for any professional services provided

more than one year prior to the date of the report? Yes [ ] No [ ]

Key data reported on by this office for this engagement:

Total gOVernMENt-wide ASSELS ........ceceecuerierierieeriieteeeesreesreereereeseesreesaeessesneesenesns $
Total government-wide Nt POSITION ....c..eeviiierieriietieieeeeeeee e eve e seee e eseeeee e $
Total revenues of governmental aCtiVItIEs ........c.cccverveerieecieeieriereeie e $
Total revenues of business-type aCtIVILIES ......ccveeverreerreerieeieseesieereeeesneseesseenne e $

NUMDbET Of OPINION UNILS ...e.vveiieiieiieiieieeteeieeeteiteteeteeaesaesseesseeseeseesssesseesseenseens

General description of audited entity:

List all services [ET 101.05] performed for the client during the period of the professional engagement or the period
covered by the financial statements (including financial statement preparation, cash to accrual conversions, and any other
nonaudit services).

If this engagement was performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were any significant threats
identified in regard to nonaudit services? Yes [ | No[] N/A []

Indicate the working paper reference locations of the independence documentation.

If this engagement was performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, has the assessment of the
skills, knowledge, or experience of the individual(s) designated to oversee the nonaudit service(s) been documented?
Yes [ ] No [] N/A [] Ifyes, working paper reference location.

* Not applicable unless required by firm policy.
T To determine the applicability of all cross-referenced pronouncements, consider their effective dates.
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Owner Manager
or or
Partner Equivalent
Personnel Continuity:
Number of years assigned on this engagement...........cccvvieeueeecieeeriieeciieeiee e e ereeevee v
Number of years in current position on this engagement
Audit hours on this engagement:
Prior to After
Commencement During Completion of
Total of Field Work Field Work Field Work

OWNEI/Partner.........ccveeveeveeeeeenrieieereere e
Engagement Quality Control Reviewer ...........
Manager (or equivalent) .........cocceveeereeneenennenne
Senior/Other Personnel....
Total HOUTS .....eveeeiieiieciie et

Describe the engagement team’s experience and training relevant to this engagement.

PRP §20,500 Copyright © 2014, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Inc.



00-8 JAN 2014 Governmental Audit Engagement Checklist (Ending on or After December 15, 2012)

Single Audit Data (from final audited financial statements):

Total amount of federal assistance expended® ..............ocoveveieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeen.
Threshold for Type A PrOGIAMS .........ccceeeveeierieriieieeteeeeeteeee e eeeseeesseeseenneens

Were any large loans or loan guarantees excluded in determining
TYPE A PIOGIAMS? ......ovecereeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e N/A[] Yes[ ] No[]

Dollar amount of total federal assistance expended that was tested as
TNAJOT PTOZTAITIS ....veuvevteueeneenteneeeeaeeeseeseeseeseentansensensesesseeseeseeseeneeneensensenseasesseeseeseaneans

% of total federal assistance expended that was tested as major programs...............

In accordance with OMB Circular A-133 Section .530, was auditee considered
A TOW-TISK QUATEEE? ..o eeeeeen Yes[ ] No[]

If the auditee was considered low risk, did it meet the following
for each of the two preceding vears? ...............cccoooiiiiii N/A ]

Were OMB A-133 single audits performed and
submitted on a timely basis? ............cocovvievers corveeeeeeeeeeeeieeens Yes[ ] No[]

Date data collection forms were accepted by the Federal Audit Clearinghouse:
Current year audit:

First preceding year audit:

Second preceding year audit:

Were unqualified opinions issued on the financial statements and the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards? .............cccocoveeeeeeeeeeieennnn Yes[ ] No[]

Did the auditee have no material weaknesses in internal control over financial
TEPOTENG? ..o s s en s neesn s Yes[] No[]

Did the auditee have no findings in Type A programs from any of the following:

Material weaknesses in internal control over compliance?...... Yes[ | No[]
Material NONCOMPLANCE?............ovvereeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeesenens Yes[ ] No[]
Known or likely questioned costs > 5% of expenditures

for that Type A Program? ............ccooeeeeveeereeereereseneerseenenen. Yes[] No[]

Dollar amount required to be tested as major to meet % of coverage based on
low-risk auditee determination abOVe........c..coeeererireeienieniinenieeneeeeeeeeeee e

If applicable, did auditor use the first year audit exception
and deviate from the risk based approach? ..................... N/A[] Yes[ ] No[]

! This amount should include “pass through” federal assistance received indirectly from another state or local government.
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Complete the following chart with two-year lookback information and information regarding current year. If the programs are part of a cluster, list the name of
the cluster and all CFDA numbers in the cluster. As an alternative to the completion of this worksheet, the major program determination worksheet prepared by

the firm may be submitted to the peer reviewer. Any alternate format must include the requested information for the current and prior two years.

SINGLE AUDIT/A-133 MAJOR PROGRAM DETERMINATION WORKSHEET

Current Year

First Preceding Year

Second Preceding Year

Name of
Agency or
Department

CFDA or
Other No.

Name of
Program

Were
ARRA
funds
expended?
(Y/N)

Total
Awards
Expended

Year Last
Audited
as a
Major
Program

Type
Program
(A orB)

Non-
Major
Program

Major
Program

Total
Awards
Expended

Year Last
Audited
as a
Major
Program

Type
Program
(A orB)

Total
Awards
Expended

Year Last
Audited
as a
Major
Program

Type
Program
(A or B)

|Tota| Financial Awards, All Programs
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AUDIT ENGAGEMENT RISK ASSESSMENT

This section of the engagement profile should be completed by the engagement partner or manager (or by the reviewer
based on the interview of the engagement team).

1. Summarize key factors the engagement team considered with regard to the entity, its environment, fraud
risk factors, and entity level controls and how they affected the audit approach.

2. What are the two or three areas with the highest risk of material misstatement in the financial statements?

3. If a group audit, describe the level of reliance on the work of component auditors.

Date Engagement Review Performed Date Checklist Reviewed by Team Captain

Reviewer Signature Team Captain Signature
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I. GENERAL AUDIT PLANNING PROCEDURES
Ques. N/A! Yes No* Ref.

Client and Engagement Acceptance and Continuance:

Did the engagement partner perform procedures regarding the acceptance
of the client relationship and the specific audit engagement? [AU-C
220.14—.15] Glor [ ] L]

If a scope limitation that would lead to a disclaimer was imposed by man-
agement, was the audit required by law or regulation? [AU-C 210.07] G102 [ ] ]

If the auditor succeeded another auditor, did the successor auditor initi-
ate communications with the predecessor auditor to ascertain whether
there were matters that might assist the auditor in determining whether
to accept the engagement? [AU-C 210.11-.12] G103 ] ] ]

Did the successor auditor obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about whether opening balances contain misstatements that materially
affect the current period’s financial statements and appropriate account-
ing policies reflected in the opening balances have been consistently
applied? [AU-C 510.06—.11] G104 L] L] L]

e Also, consider if the auditor becomes aware of information during
the audit that might require revision of prior year presented finan-
cial information, did the auditor make the required inquiries of
the predecessor auditor? [AU-C 510.12]

If anything has been noted that may indicate a lack of independence,
integrity, and objectivity, was the matter identified and appropriately
resolved by the firm and its effects appropriately considered? [ET 101—
102] [QC 10.21-.26] G105 L] L] L]

Did the auditor establish and document in writing his or her understand-
ing with the client with regard to specific criteria relating to nonattest
services? [ET 101.05] [QC 10.21-.26] Glo6 [ ] ]

Have engagement personnel (including leased and per diem employees)
been appropriately advised of the need to observe independence, integrity,
and objectivity requirements concerning the client and any related nonclient
parent, investor, investee, subsidiary, or affiliate? [QC 10.21—26] G107 [ ] ]

Were all fees, billed or unbilled, or note(s) receivable arising from such
fees for any professional services that were provided more than one year
prior to the date of the report paid prior to the issuance of the report for
the current engagement? [ET 191.103—-.104] [QC 10.21-.26] Gl1os [ ] ]

Does it appear the firm’s guidelines for acceptance and continuance of
client relationships, including performing specific engagements for the
client, were complied with, based on inquiry of the predecessor account-
ant or review of engagement files, if any? [QC 10.27—.30] G109 ] ] ]

Did the firm comply with its policies for ensuring that it provided suffi-
cient personnel with the competence, capabilities, and commitment to
ethical principles to perform the engagement in accordance with profes-
sional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements? [QC
10.31-.34 and QC 10.A17-.A31] G110 ] ] ]

I The “N/A” column should be used when the item either does not exist or is not material.

#All “No” answers should be handled in either of the following ways: (1) discussed on a Matter for Further Consideration (MFC) form with
the MFC form number noted in the “Ref.” column or (2) discussed on the pages provided at the end of this checklist if no MFC form was generat-
ed.
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

Client Understanding:

Did the auditor agree upon the terms of the audit engagement with man-
agement,” which should be documented in an engagement letter or other
suitable form of written agreement? [AU-C 210.10] G111 ] ] ]

The agreement should include

o the objective and scope of the audit of the financial statements.
[AU-C 210.104a]

o the responsibilities of the auditor. [AU-C 210.105]

o the responsibilities of management, including management’s ac-
knowledgment of [AU-C 210.10c¢]

— the fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework. [AU-C
210.065(1)]

— the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal con-
trol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of finan-
cial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. [AU-C 210.065(ii)]

— providing access to all information of which management is
aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements, such as records, documentation,
and other matters. [AU-C 210.065(iii)(1)]

— providing the auditor with additional information that the
auditor may request from management for the purpose of the
audit. [AU-C 210.06h(iii)(2)]

— providing the auditor with unrestricted access to persons with
the entity from whom the auditor determines it necessary to
obtain audit evidence. [AU-C 210.06b(iii)(3)]

e a statement that because of the inherent limitation of an audit,
together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an una-
voidable risk exists that some material misstatements may not be
detected, even though the audit is properly planned and per-
formed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
(GAAS). [AU-C 210.104]

o identification of the applicable financial reporting framework for
the preparation of the financial statements. [AU-C 210.10¢]

o reference to the expected form and content of any reports to be
issued by the auditor and a statement that circumstances may
arise in which a report may differ from the expected form and
content. [AU-C 210.10f]

" Generally, the auditor establishes an understanding of the services to be performed with the entity’s management. In some cases, the auditor may
establish such an understanding with those charged with governance. The term those charged with governance means the person(s) with
responsibility for overseeing the strategic direction of the entity and obligations related to the accountability of the entity. This includes overseeing
the financial reporting and disclosure process. In some cases, those charged with governance are responsible for approving the financial statements
(in other cases, management has this responsibility). For entities with a board of directors, this term encompasses the term board of directors or
audit committees expressed elsewhere in generally accepted auditing standards.

PRP §20,500 Copyright © 2014, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Inc.



00-8 JAN 2014

Audit Planning:

Did the auditor properly plan the audit, giving appropriate consideration
to the following? [AU-C 300] Specifically, did the auditor

involve the engagement partner and other key members of the
engagement team in planning the audit, including planning and
participating in the discussion among engagement team mem-
bers? [AU-C 300.05]

evaluate compliance with relevant ethical requirements? [AU-C
300.065]

establish an overall audit strategy that sets the scope, timing, and
direction of the audit and that guides the development of the audit
plan? [AU-C 300.07]

in developing the overall audit strategy, [AU-C 300.08]

— identify the characteristics of the engagement that define its
scope;

— ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement in order
to plan the timing of the audit and the nature of the commu-
nications required;

— consider the factors that, in the auditor’s professional judg-
ment, are significant in directing the engagement team’s ef-
forts;

— consider the results of preliminary engagement activities and,
when applicable, whether knowledge gained on other en-
gagements performed by the engagement partner for the enti-
ty is relevant; and

— ascertain the nature, timing, and extent of resources neces-
sary to perform the engagement?

develop an audit plan that includes a description of [AU-C
300.09]

— the nature and extent of planned risk assessment procedures;

— the nature, timing, and extent of planned further audit proce-
dures at the relevant assertion level; and

— other planned audit procedures that are required to be carried
out so that the engagement complies with GAAS?

establish one or more levels of performance materiality? [AU-C
320.11]

plan the nature, timing, and extent of direction and supervision of
engagement team members and review of their work? [AU-C
310.11]

consider whether specialized skills are needed in performing the
audit? [AU-C 300.12]

Did the auditor document the overall audit strategy, the audit plan, and
any changes made during the audit engagement to the overall audit strat-
egy or the audit plan and the reasons for such changes? [AU-C 300.14]

AICPA Peer Review Program Manual
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

Did the auditor consider, prior to the auditor’s identification and assess-
ment of the risks of material misstatement, such matters as the follow-
ing: [AU-C 300.A2%%*] Gl14 [ L] L]

o The analytical procedures to be applied as risk assessment proce-
dures?

e A general understanding of the legal and regulatory framework
applicable to the entity and how the entity is complying with that
framework?

e The determination of materiality?
e The involvement of specialists?

e The performance of other risk assessment procedures?

If consideration was given to the work of internal auditors in determin-
ing the scope of the audit, was it done in accordance with professional
standards? [AU-C 610] Gl15 ] ] ]

Fraud Considerations:

Did the auditor properly document compliance with fraud risk consider-
ations? [AU-C 240.44] Documentation should summarize the following: G116 ] ] ]

e Discussion among engagement personnel in planning the audit
regarding the susceptibility of the entity’s financial statements to
material misstatement due to fraud, how management could per-
petrate and conceal fraudulent financial reporting, and how assets
of the entity could be misappropriated? [AU-C 240.15]

o Identification of the members of management and others within
the entity with whom the auditor made inquiries about the risks
of fraud? [AU-C 240.17-.21]

e Consideration of preliminary analytical procedures, including
procedures specifically related to revenue? [AU-C 240.22]

e Other information obtained that indicates risks of material mis-
statement due to fraud? [AU-C 240.23]

e The identification and the assessment of material misstatement
due to fraud at the financial statement level and at the assertion
level for classes of transactions, account balances, and disclo-
sures? [AU-C 240.25]

e The auditor’s reasons supporting a conclusion that improper rev-
enue recognition is not a risk of material misstatement due to
fraud? [AU-C 240.26]

e The assessed risks of material misstatements due to fraud as sig-
nificant risks and, accordingly, to the extent not already done so,
the auditor’s understanding of the entity’s related controls, in-
cluding control activities, relevant to such risks, including the
evaluation of whether such controls have been suitably designed
and implemented to mitigate such fraud risks? [AU-C 240.27]

e The auditor’s overall responses to address the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud at the financial statement as-
sertion level and the auditor’s incorporation of an element of un-
predictability in the selection of the nature, timing, and extent of
audit procedures? [AU-C 240.28-.30]
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The auditor’s identification of management’s override of controls
as a significant risk? The risks of management’s override of con-
trols should be addressed apart from any conclusions regarding
the existence of more specifically identifiable risks? Appropriate
procedures performed, including testing the appropriateness of
journal entries and other adjustments made in preparation of the
financial statements, reviewing accounting estimates for bias,
and evaluating significant transactions that are outside the normal
course of business for the entity? [AU-C 240.31-.32]

Evaluation of the accumulated results of auditing procedures and
whether they affect the assessment of risks of material misstate-
ment due to fraud made earlier in the audit or indicate a previous-
ly unrecognized risk of material misstatement due to fraud? [AU-
C 240.34]

The evaluation of misstatements, whether material or not, and
whether they are indicative of fraud and whether management
was involved? [AU-C 240.34-.37]

The nature of communications about fraud made to management
and those charged with governance? [AU-C 240.39-.41]

The nature of the communications about fraud made to regulatory
and enforcement authorities? [AU-C 240.42]

IT Considerations:

Did the auditor properly identify risks associated with the role of IT?
This could include the following considerations:

Identification of the role of IT relative to financial transactions
and financial reporting [AU-C 315.A53—. A60%*]

Risk of material misstatement associated with financial transac-
tions and financial reporting [AU-C 320]

Obtaining sufficient knowledge of the information system, in-
cluding the related business processes relevant to financial re-
porting [AU-C 315.A84—.A90%%*]

Obtaining an understanding of how the entity has responded to
risks arising from IT [AU-C 315.22]

Identification and assessment of potentially mitigating controls
for those inherent risks, including application and general com-
puting controls [AU-C 315.A54—.A60**]

The auditor possessing, either internally or through the use of a
specialist, the required expertise to address the risks associated
with IT [AU-C 300.A18—.A19%*]

The auditor, either directly or through the use of a specialist, suf-
ficiently identifying and addressing risks associated with IT and
internal controls [AU-C 315.22]

Did the auditor properly identify and document the linkage between fur-
ther audit procedures (test of controls, substantive procedures, or both)
and the IT risk assessment? [AU-C 330] This could include the following:

The auditor documented the understanding of the entity and its
environment. [AU-C 315]

The firm used a professional possessing IT skills to determine
the effect of IT on the audit, understand the IT controls, or design
and perform tests of IT controls or substantive procedures. [AU-
C 310.A19%%]
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Group Audits:

Did the auditor appropriately identify the audit as being a group audit
based on the existence of components at the appropriate level of aggre-
gation? [AU-C 600.A1-.A5*%*]

Were appropriate acceptance and continuance procedures performed,
including

o considering whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence regard-
ing the consolidation process and the financial information of the
components on which to base the group audit opinion can be
reasonably expected to be obtained? [AU-C 600.14—-.16]

o identification of significant components? A significant compo-
nent is a component identified by the group engagement team (i)
that is of individual financial significance to the group, or (ii) due
to its specific nature or circumstances, is likely to include signifi-
cant risks of material misstatement of the group financial state-
ments. [AU-C 600. 14-.16]

Did the auditor agree upon the terms of the group audit engagement?
[AU-C 600.17]

Did the group audit team establish an overall group audit strategy and
develop an overall group audit plan? Was the plan approved by the
group engagement partner? [AU-C 600.18—.19]

Did the auditor obtain an understanding of the entity, including group-
wide controls and an understanding of the consolidation process? [AU-C
600.20]

Did the group engagement team determine component materiality for
those components on which the group engagement team will perform, or
for which the auditor of the group financial statements will assume re-
sponsibility for the work of a component auditor who perform an audit
or a review? [AU-C 600.32]

Did the group engagement team perform proper procedures related to
the consolidation process in response to the assessed risks of material
misstatements of the group financial statements? [AU-C 600.34—.39]

Work Performed by a Component Auditor:

When the engagement included the work of component auditors, did the
group engagement team obtain an understanding of the following?
(Note: Component auditors may be part of the group engagement part-
ner’s firm, a network firm, or another firm.) Consider

e whether a component auditor understands and will comply with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to the group audit and,
in particular, is independent. [AU-C 600.224]

e acomponent auditor’s professional competence. [AU-C 600.225]

o the extent, if any, to which the group engagement team will be
able to be involved in the work of the component auditor. [AU-C
600.22¢]

e whether the group engagement team will be able to obtain infor-
mation affecting the consolidation process from a component
auditor. [AU-C 600.22d]

e whether a component auditor operates in a regulatory environ-
ment that actively oversees the auditor. [AU-C 600.22¢]

Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

G119 [ ] [
G120 [ ] [

G121 [ ] ]

G122 [ ] [

G123 [ ] ]

G124 [ ] [

G125 [ ] ]

G126 [ ] [
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If the group engagement partner decided to make reference to the report
of a component auditor

o was that decision appropriate? [AU-C 600.24—.27]

o did the auditor’s report make appropriate reference to the compo-
nent auditor in the auditor’s report of the group financial state-
ments? [AU-C 600.28—-.31]

If the group engagement partner is not making reference to the work of
a component auditor, were appropriate procedures performed, including
group engagement team involvement in the work of the component au-
ditor? [AU-C 600.50—.64]

Auditor’s Specialist, If Used:

If an auditor’s specialist was used (for example, actuary, appraiser, engi-
neer, environmental consultant, or geologist), did the auditor apply the
appropriate procedures to evaluate the qualifications and findings of the
specialist? Consider whether

e appropriate considerations and evaluations were made in accord-
ance with professional standards. [AU-C 620.08—.11]

o the evaluation of objectivity included the inquiry regarding inter-
ests and relationships that may create a threat to the objectivity of
the auditor’s specialist. [AU-C 620.09]

e appropriate procedures were applied to evaluate the adequacy of
the work of the specialist. [AU-C 620.12]

e appropriate procedures were applied to test the source data used
by the specialist. [AU-C 620.12c¢]

Internal Control and Control Risks:

When developing an understanding of the entity and its environment
relative to evaluation of the risk of material misstatements and the re-
sponse to the audit evidence obtained, did the auditor

e perform risk assessment procedures, including inquiries of man-
agement and others within the entity, analytical procedures, and
observation and inspection? [AU-C 315.05—.11]

e obtain an understanding of the entity and its environment and
components of its internal controls in order to assess the risk of
material misstatements at the assertion level and to design and
perform further audit procedures responsive to assessed risks?
[AU-C 315.12-.25]

o understand the auditor’s responsibility to identify risks of materi-
al misstatement at the financial statement level and at the relevant
assertion level related to classes of transactions, account balances,
and disclosures? [AU-C 315.26-.27]

o identify significant risks and obtain an understanding of the enti-
ty’s controls, including control activities, relevant to those risks,
and, based on that understanding, evaluate whether such controls
have been suitably designed and implemented to mitigate such
risks? [AU-C 315.28-.30]

o if the auditor assesses that it is not possible or practicable to ob-
tain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive
procedures related to some risks, obtain an understanding of the
entity’s controls over such risks? [AU-C 315.31]
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e design and perform substantive procedures for all relevant asser-
tions related to each material class of transactions, account bal-
ances, and disclosure? [AU-C 330.18-.24]

Service Auditor Reports:

If the auditor is relying on a service auditor report, did the auditor sub-
stantively meet professional requirements regarding internal control by G131 ] ] ]

e considering the controls at a service organization that may affect
the client’s transactions and internal control? [AU-C 402.09—.14]

e obtaining an understanding of the controls in place at the entity
and at a service organization whose services are part of the enti-
ty’s information system? [AU-C 402.03]

e performing one or more of the following in order to obtain audit
evidence about the operating effectiveness of the service organi-
zation’s controls if the auditor’s risk assessment includes an ex-
pectation that those controls are operating effectively?

— Obtaining and reading the type 2 report [AU-C 402.16]

— Performing appropriate tests of controls at the service organ-
ization [AU-C 402.16]

— Using another auditor to perform tests of client’s controls at
the service organization on behalf of the user auditor [AU-C
402.16]

— Determining whether the service auditor’s report provides
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the effectiveness
of the controls to support the user auditor’s risk assessment,
if the user auditor plans to use a type 2 report as audit evi-
dence that controls at the service organization are operating
effectively [AU-C 402.17]

Related Party Transactions:
Did the auditor [AU-C 550] G132 [ ] O]

e obtain and document an understanding of related party relation-
ships and transactions to identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement? [AU-C 550.04]

e share the identity of related parties and other relevant infor-
mation with the engagement team? [AU-C 550.18]

e obtain sufficient audit evidence about whether related party rela-
tionships and transactions have been appropriately identified,
accounted for, and disclosed in the financial statements? [AU-C
550.04]

Audit Plan:

Did the auditor properly consider and document the following in the
development of the audit plan and strategy and completion of the audit
programs, when applicable? [AU-C 300.A21—.A23**] Consider that G133 ] ] ]

o the overall audit strategy is a record of the key decisions consid-
ered necessary to properly plan the audit and significant issues
communicated to the engagement team. [AU-C 300.A21%%*]

o the audit plan is a record of the planned nature, timing, and ex-
tent of risk assessment procedures and further audit procedures at

the relevant assertion level in response to the assessed risks.
[AU-C 300.A22%%*]

PRP §20,500 Copyright © 2014, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Inc.



00-8 JAN 2014 Governmental Audit Engagement Checklist (Ending on or After December 15, 2012) 20,517

II. AUDIT AREAS
Highest Risk Audit Areas
Consider the firm’s risk assessments identified in the engagement profile and your review of the financial statements
and planning documentation to identify, in column 1 that follows, the highest risk audit areas to be reviewed. Ordinar-
ily, a scope of at least three areas is expected. Risk area selection is a matter of professional judgment that may in-
clude consideration of the scope and results of other engagements evaluated in the peer review.

Review the planning and risk assessment documentation for each risk area selected. Indicate your assessment of the
firm’s performance related to elements in columns 2—4. [AU-C 300-315]

Highest Risk Adequate Was the Risk As-
Audit Audit Risk Adequate Planned [sessment Adequately
Areas Identification? Audit Response ? Documented?
(1) 2) 3) 4)
Yes No Yes No Yes No

Audit Area
Cash L] L] L] L] L] ] ]
Receivables L] L] L] L] L] ] ]
Inventories [l ] L] L] L] L] L]
Investments and Derivative
Instruments O O O O O O O
Prepaid Items/Deferred Charges ] ] ] ] ] ] ]
Capital Assets, Including
Intangibles [ [ [ [ [ [ [
Liabilities H H [] [] (] C] C]
Deferred Inflows/Unearned
Revenue Ol Ol Ol Ol Ol ] ]
Commitments and
Contingencies [ [ [ [ [ [ [
Fund Balance/Net Position
and Financial Statement ] ] ] ] ] ] ]
Reconciliations
Revenues [l ] L] L] L] L] L]
Expenditures/Expenses and
Encumbrances O O O O O O O
Budgets (] (] (] (] (] ] ]

If any “No” answers are identified in the preceding matrix for which a Matter for Further Consideration
(MFC) form was not generated, include an explanation in section V, “Explanation of ‘No’ Answers and Other
Comments.”

* Indicate with a checkmark.
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Note: Review the work performed in the highest risk audit areas identified in the matrix and complete only those
sections of the subsequent checklist. In the audit areas reviewed, indicate whether the reviewed firm has ob-
tained sufficient competent evidential matter to form conclusions concerning the validity of the assertions of
material significance embodied in the financial statements as described in AU-C section 500, Audit Evidence
(AICPA, Professional Standards).

Ques. N/A! Yes No* Ref.

Cash
[AAG-SLV 5.01-.88]

[] Selected audit area

Does the audit documentation indicate that the following were sufficient-
ly considered, when applicable: [AU-C 500, 505, and 230] G201 ] ] ]

e  Confirmation of cash balances
e Restrictions on cash balances

e Confirmation of bank credit arrangements, such as compensat-
ing balances

e Confirmation of liabilities and contingent liabilities to banks
e  Approval of interfund cash transactions

e Pledging of collateral required of depository institutions for
public funds

e Compliance with the laws and regulations governing the deposit
of public funds

e Determination that all cash accounts have been identified and
appropriately recorded

e Review of repurchase security transactions for consistency with
the disclosures of their terms and conditions

e Cash overdrafts from pooled cash and investments accounted
for as an interfund receivable or payable

Were reconciling items cleared by reference to subsequent statements
obtained either directly from the bank or from the client and appropriately

tested? G202 [ ] L]

Was due consideration given to cash transactions shortly before and
shortly after the balance-sheet date to determine whether they were re-

corded in the proper period? G203 ] ] L] .
Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-

sions about this audit area? G204 ] ] [
Receivables

[AAG-SLV 6.01-.98]
[] Selected audit area

Were accounts receivable confirmed and appropriate follow-up steps
taken, including second requests and alternative procedures? [AU-C
505.07 and .10—.14] G205 [ ] ]

Il The “N/A” column should be used when the item either does not exist or is not material.

# All “No” answers should be handled in either of the following ways: (1) discussed on a Matter for Further Consideration (MFC) form with
the MFC form number noted in the “Ref.” column or (2) discussed on the pages provided at the end of this checklist if no MFC form was generat-
ed.
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If accounts receivable confirmations were not requested, has the auditor
documented how the presumption for such requests was overcome and
were the reasons appropriate? [AU-C 330.20]

If confirmation work was performed prior to year end, is there evidence
that adequate substantive procedures were applied to the period from the
confirmation date to the balance-sheet date? [AU-C 330.23]

In the case of each nonresponse to confirmations, is there evidence that
alternative auditing procedures were performed to obtain relevant and
reliable audit evidence? [AU-C 505.12]

Were significant notes receivable confirmed as of a date consistent with
the auditor’s assessment of inherent, control, and detection risks? [AU-C
330.06—.07]

Were the results of confirmation and alternative procedures summarized
and were appropriate conclusions included in the audit documentation?
[AU-C 230.08]

Was collateral (if any) for receivables tested with respect to existence,
ownership, and value?

Were procedures performed, such as cut-off testing, to provide evidence
that receivables, and were the related revenues recorded in the correct
period?

Were adequate tests of discounts and allowances made?

Was the reasonableness of allowances for doubtful accounts covered in
the audit documentation and collectability of receivables (including
interfund receivables) adequately considered? [AU-C 540.12—.14]

Is there evidence in the audit documentation that inquiry and other tests
were made and consideration given to whether receivables or future reve-
nues were sold, pledged, assigned, or otherwise encumbered? [GASB 48]

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?
Inventories
[AAG-SLV 8.01-.133]
[] Selected audit area
Does the audit documentation indicate that there were adequate consid-
eration and tests of the following: [AU-C 500 and 230]
e Physical observation, if material [AU-C 501.11]
e The clerical accuracy of the inventory

e Costing methods and substantiation of costs used in pricing all
elements (raw material, work-in-process, and finished goods) of
the inventory

e Summary of inventory observation results and other tests and
appropriate conclusions

e Consideration to whether the inventory was carried at lower of
cost or market (including consideration of obsolete or slow-
moving inventory)

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

Investments and Derivative Instruments
[AAG-SLV 5.01-.88]
[] Selected audit area

For investments in securities, derivative instruments, and hedging activi-
ties, did the auditor obtain an understanding of the entity’s internal con-
trol sufficient for the following: G219 ] ] ]

e Identification of the types of potential misstatements of specific
financial statement assertions (existence, completeness, rights
and obligations, valuation, and presentation and disclosure)
[AU-C 315.27]

e Consideration of factors that affect the risk that the misstate-
ments would be material to the financial statements [AU-C
315.27]

For derivative instruments and securities measured at fair value, consider G220 ] ] ]

e whether the auditor should determine whether the applicable
financial reporting framework specifies the method to be used
to determine the fair value derivative instruments and invest-
ments in securities and evaluate whether the determination of
fair value is consistent with the specified valuation method.
[AU-C 501.06]

o if estimates of fair value of derivative instruments or securities
are obtained from broker-dealers or other third-party sources
based on valuation models, the auditor should understand the
method used by the broker-dealer or other third-party source in
developing the estimate. [AU-C 501.07]

e if derivative instruments or securities are valued by the entity
using a valuation model, the auditor should obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence supporting management’s assertions
about fair value determined using the model. [AU-C 501.08]

e for impairment losses, the auditor should evaluate management’s
conclusion about the need to recognize an impairment loss for a
decline in a security’s fair value below its cost or carrying amount
and obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence supporting the
amount of any impairment adjustment recorded, including evalu-
ating whether the requirements of the applicable financial report-
ing framework have been complied with. [AU-C 501.09]

e for unrealized appreciation or depreciation on derivatives, the
auditor should obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the amount of unrealized appreciation or depreciation in
fair value of a derivative that is recognized or disclosed because
of the ineffectiveness of a hedge, including evaluating whether
the requirements of the applicable financial reporting frame-
work have been complied with. [AU-C 501.10]

e sufficient appropriate audit evidence was obtained to determine
that land or other real estate held by permanent or term endow-
ments were reported at fair value.

e obtaining an understanding of the applicable generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for assertions about derivatives.

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area? G221 ] ] ]
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Prepaid Items/Deferred Charges
[AAG-SLV 8.01-.133]

[] Selected audit area

Were adequate tests made for all material prepaid items and other de-
ferred charges? [AU-C 230 and 500]

Were reviews made for the deferral and amortization (or lack thereof)
of these types of assets?

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Capital Assets, Including Intangibles
[AAG-SLV 7.01-.79]
[] Selected audit area
Was a summary schedule prepared or obtained to show beginning bal-
ances, changes during the period, and ending balances for
e capital assets, including infrastructure and intangibles?
e accumulated depreciation/amortization(when applicable)?
Do tests appear adequate, and were proper conclusions drawn with re-
spect to the reporting and disclosure of capital assets?
Consider the following:
e  Beginning and ending balances
e Additions (for example, by examining supporting documents or
physical inspection)
e Retirements (including examining miscellaneous income and
scrap sales)

e The adequacy of the current and accumulated provisions for
depreciation and its allocation to functional expense categories

e Consideration of the possibility that the property was subject to
liens

e Consideration that capital expenditures were classified in the
proper fund accounts and made in accordance with budgetary
requirements

e The inclusion of intangible assets as capital assets and the proper
valuation of such assets, including amortization when applicable

Has the following been adequately considered related to impairment of
capital assets pursuant to GASB 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries? In par-
ticular, consider whether

e asset impairments have been recorded for capital assets when
there has been a significant and unexpected decline in the ser-
vice utility of the asset.

e impairments have been measured using one of the four accept-
able measurement methods.

e permanent impairments have been reported in the statement of
activities and statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in
fund net position as a program or operating expense or as a spe-
cial or extraordinary item.
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e temporary impairments have not resulted in a capital asset write
down.

e any impairment losses have been reported net of insurance
recoveries.

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area? G228 ] ] ]

Liabilities

[AAG-SLV 8.01-.133]

[] Selected audit area

Were accounts payable tested adequately for existence? G229

Was an adequate search performed for unrecorded liabilities at the
statement of net position or balance sheet date? G230

Were sufficient audit procedures performed over customer and developer
deposits? G231

Was consideration given to accrued payroll liabilities (for example, pen-
sions, compensated absences, termination benefits, claims incurred but not
reported, or postemployment benefits provided to former or inactive em-
ployees prior to retirement), and to whether accrued expenses and any net
pension or other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligations were reason-
ably stated? G232

[]
[]
[]
|

Were procedures performed to determine that estimated environmental
liabilities, such as municipal solid waste landfill closure and postclosure
care costs and pollution remediation costs, were properly accounted for? G233

Were procedures performed to determine whether deferred compensation
plans had been appropriately accounted for? G234

Were significant notes and bonds payable, together with interest rates and
repayment periods, confirmed or alternative procedures applied? G235

Does the audit documentation indicate that the auditor reviewed compli-
ance with the covenants of the entity’s debt obligations? G236

Were procedures performed to determine the following related to long-
term debt: G237

e New debt issues were properly authorized as required by the
state constitution or state or local statutes and recorded in the
correct fund and activity type.

O 0O o o O
O 0O o o O
O 0O o o O

e Debt restrictions, guarantees, and other debt commitments were
properly disclosed.

e Debt refunding gains, losses, and required disclosures have
been properly considered, reported, and disclosed.

Do the tests of interfund borrowings appear adequate with respect to the
following: [AAG-SLV 9.16-.20] G238 ] ] ]

e  Authorization
e (lassification

e  Ability and intent to repay
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Does the audit documentation contain sufficient documentation of tests
of liabilities recognized for claims incurred but not reported as of the
balance-sheet date?

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Deferred Inflows of Resources/Unearned Revenue

[AAG-SLV 6.01-.98]

[] Significant audit area

Does the audit documentation reflect the following in regard to unearned
revenue and deferred inflows of resources:

e Consideration of whether the basis of recording unearned reve-
nue is reasonable and consistent with restrictions imposed by
the grantor or special assessment

e For nonexchange transactions, consideration given to the reve-
nue, unearned revenue, and deferred inflows of resources recog-
nition

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Commitments and Contingencies

[AAG-SLV 4.01-.135 and 8.01-.133]

[] Selected audit area

Does the audit documentation contain evidence of the following in re-
gard to commitments and contingencies:

o Inspection of minutes of meetings of the oversight unit, provi-
sions of the governmental unit’s charter, and applicable statutes
and changes therein through the report release date

e Inspection of contracts, loan agreements, leases, and corre-
spondence from taxing and other governmental agencies, as
well as similar documents through the report release date

Have all material contingencies been properly considered, documented,
and reported?

Was appropriate consideration given to known environmental matters
that could result in liabilities or contingencies?

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Fund Balance/Net Position and Financial Statement Reconciliations
[AAG-SLV 10.01-.33]

[] Selected audit area

Does the audit documentation indicate the following regarding fund
balance, net position, and reconciliations between the government-wide
and fund financial statements? Consider whether
e there was appropriate consideration regarding proper classifica-
tion, description, and disclosures of components of fund balance
and net position, such as the components of net position of net
investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e in the case of a successor auditor, when there is discovery of a
possible misstatement of prior period financial statements, the
successor auditor undertook the appropriate procedures to
communicate with the predecessor auditor. [AU-C 510.12]

e capital contributions were properly accounted for and reported
as revenue and not a direct increase to net position.

o all material reconciling items between the fund and government-
wide financial statements were properly supported and presented.

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area? G248 ] ] ]

Revenues
[AAG-SLV 6.01-.98]
[] Selected audit area

Were appropriate analytical procedures used in reviewing revenues for
the period? [AU-C 520] G249 ]

Was adequate consideration given to the following: G250 ]

OO
OO
\

e  The entity’s revenue recognition policy

e Recognition of property tax revenues

e Recognition of taxpayer-assessed tax revenues

e Shared tax revenues or shared imposed nonexchange revenues

e Certain nonexchange transactions involving financial or capital
resources

e Income recognition on transactions when the earnings process
was not complete

e Recognition of revenues and interfund transactions in the ac-
counting period in which they became available and measurable
for fund types using the modified accrual basis of accounting

e Use of material restricted revenue sources for their restricted
purposes
o If the entity is reimbursed by a third party for costs incurred in
connection with providing services to others,
— review pertinent sections of significant third-party contracts
to determine the basis for reimbursement

— review cost reimbursement reports and the underlying sup-
port

If substantive analytical procedures were performed on revenue, was the
analysis based on disaggregated data to gain greater precision, as appropri-

ate? [AU-C 520.A22%%*] G251 [l [l [
Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area? G252 L] ] ] -

Expenditures/Expenses and Encumbrances
[AAG-SLV 8.01-.133 and 11.01-.26]
[ ] Selected audit area

Were appropriate analytical procedures used in reviewing expenditures,
expenses, or both for the period? [AU-C 520] G253 [ [l [l
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Have encumbrances been properly identified, supported, and recorded in
governmental funds and budgetary comparisons, when applicable?

Were tests of payrolls, goods and services, capital outlays, and debt ser-
vice, including account distribution, made, when appropriate?

Were audit tests sufficient over transactions and events related to the
following:

e Capital, operating, sales, and direct financing leases

o Compensated absences

e  Deferred compensation

e Voluntary and involuntary termination benefits

e Pension and OPEB costs

e QGrants, entitlements, appropriations, and shared revenues pro-
vided to other governments or entities

e Landfill closure and postclosure care costs

e Claims and judgments, other risk financing expenses, and loss
contingencies

e Prepaid items, inventory, and debt issuance costs
e Debt service and debt guarantees
e Advance refunding of debt and in-substance defeasances

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Budgets
[AAG-SLV 11.01-.26]

[] Selected audit area

If presented as part of the basic financial statements, were appropriate
analytical procedures used in reviewing revenues, expenditures, or ex-
penses for the period compared to budget? [AU-C 520]

Did the auditor consider his or her responsibilities over budgetary com-
parison information depending on whether the information is presented
as required supplementary information (RSI) or as part of the basic finan-
cial statements? [AAG-SLV 11.19-.24]

Did the auditor obtain sufficient knowledge of the budget process and
related controls sufficient to understand [AAG-SLV 11.25-.26]

o the laws governing the budget process and how the budget is
adopted and amended?

o if the original budget and amendments are properly incorporated
into the accounting records and the budgetary comparison in-
formation?

o the legal level of budgetary control for purposes of evaluating
whether expenditures in excess of appropriations in individual
funds constitute a material violation of legal provisions and
were appropriately disclosed?

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

AICPA Peer Review Program Manual
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III. GENERAL AUDIT PROCEDURES
Ques. N/A! Yes No* Ref.

Audit Sampling:
Did the auditor consider the following with regard to audit sampling: G301 ] ] ]

e The purpose of the audit procedure and the characteristics of
the population from which the sample will be drawn, when
designing the audit sample? [AU-C 530.06]

e Did the auditor determine the sample size sufficient to reduce
sampling risk to an acceptably low level? [AU-C 530.07]

e Did the auditor select items for the sample in such a way that
the auditor can reasonably expect the sample to be representa-
tive of the relevant population and likely to provide the auditor
with a reasonable basis for conclusions about the population?
[AU-C 530.08]

e If the auditor was unable to apply the designed audit proce-
dures, or suitable alternative procedures to a selected item, was
the item treated as a deviation from the prescribed control (in
the case of tests of controls) or a misstatement (in the case of
tests of details)? [AU-C 530.11]

e Did the auditor project the results of audit sampling to the pop-
ulation? [AU-C 530.13]

e Did the auditor evaluate the results of the sample, including
sampling risk, and whether the use of audit sampling has pro-
vided a reasonable basis for conclusions about the population
that has been tested? [AU-C 530.14]

Substantive Analytical Procedures:

If the auditor used analytical procedures as substantive procedures, did
the auditor properly consider and document professional guidelines
regarding such procedures? Did the auditor [AU-C 520] G302 L] L] L]

e determine the suitability of particular substantive analytical pro-
cedures for given assertions, taking into account the assessed
risks of material misstatement, and test of details for these asser-
tions? [AU-C 520.054]

e cvaluate the reliability of data from which the auditor’s expecta-
tion of recorded amounts or ratios is developed? [AU-C 520.05b]

e develop an expectation of recorded amounts or ratios and evalu-
ate whether the expectation is sufficiently precise to identify a
misstatement that, individually or when aggregated with other
misstatements, may cause the financial statements to be material-
ly misstated? [AU-C 520.05¢]

e determine the amount of any difference of recorded amounts
from expected values that is acceptable without further investiga-
tion and compare the recorded amounts with expectations? [AU-
C 520.054]

I The “N/A” column should be used when the item either does not exist or is not material.

# All “No” answers should be handled in either of the following ways: (1) discussed on a Matter for Further Consideration (MFC) form with
the MFC form number noted in the “Ref.” column or (2) discussed on the pages provided at the end of this checklist if no MFC form was generat-
ed.

PRP §20,500 Copyright © 2014, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Inc.



00-8 JAN 2014

investigate differences, when the auditor identifies fluctuations
or relationships that are inconsistent with other relevant infor-
mation or that differ from expected values by a significant
amount, by [AU-C 520.07]

— inquiring of management and obtaining appropriate audit
evidence relevant to management’s responses and

— performing other audit procedures, as necessary?
document the following: [AU-C 520.08]:

— Were the expectation of recorded amounts or ratios and the
factors considered in its development when not readily
determinable from the audit documentation?

— Were the results of comparison of recorded amounts to
expectations?

— Were additional auditing procedures performed relating to
the investigation of fluctuations or relationships that are
inconsistent with other relevant information or that differ
from expected values by a significant amount and the re-
sults of such additional procedures?

Material Accounting Estimates:

Did the auditor properly consider and document the procedures applied to
material accounting estimates, when applicable? Consider the following:

The auditor should obtain an understanding of the following in
order to provide a basis for the identification of the risks of ma-
terial misstatement for accounting estimates: [AU-C 540.08]

— The requirements of the applicable financial reporting
framework relevant to accounting estimates, including re-
lated disclosures

— How management identifies those transactions, events, and
conditions that may give rise to the need for accounting
estimates to be recognized or disclosed in the financial
statements

— How management makes the accounting estimates and data
on which they are based

The auditor should review the outcome of accounting estimates
included in prior period financial statements or, when applica-
ble, their subsequent re-estimation for the purpose of the current
period. [AU-C 540.09]

When responding to the assessed risks of material misstatement,
the auditor should [AU-C 540.13]

— determine whether events occurring up to the date of the
auditor’s report provide evidence regarding the accounting
estimate;

— test how management made the accounting estimate and the
data on which it is based;

— test the operating effectiveness of the controls over how
management made the accounting estimate, together with
appropriate substantive procedures; and

— develop a point estimate or range to evaluate management’s
point estimate.
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

o If management has not adequately addressed the effects of es-
timation uncertainty on the accounting estimates that give rise
to significant risks, the auditor should, if considered necessary,
develop a range with which to evaluate the reasonableness of
the accounting estimate. [AU-C 540.16]

Representation Letters:

Did the auditor obtain written representations from current management
with appropriate responsibilities for the financial statements and know-
ledge of the matters concerned? [AU-C 580] Consider the following: G304 ] ] ]

e The representation letter was properly dated and covered all
periods referred to in the auditor’s report. [AU-C 580.20]

e The letter contains an acknowledgement that management has
fulfilled its responsibility for preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements and for internal controls relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements.
[AU-C 580.10]

e The letter acknowledges that management has provided the
auditor with all relevant information and access, and all transac-
tions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial
statements [AU-C 580.11g]

o The letter disclosed management’s representations related to the
following:

— Fraud [AU-C 580.12]

— Laws and regulations [AU-C 580.13]

— Litigation and claims [AU-C 580.15]

— Related party transactions [AU-C 580.17]
— Subsequent events [AU-C 580.18]

e The letter provides representations about whether management
believes the effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial
to the financial statements as a whole. A summary of such items
should be included, or attached to, the written representation.
[AU-C 580.14]

o If the auditor determines that it is necessary to obtain one or
more written representations to support other audit evidence
relevant to the financial statements or more specific assertions
in the financial statements, the auditor should request such other
representations. [AU-C580.19]

Did the auditor obtain written representations from current management
with appropriate responsibilities for the financial statements and know-
ledge of the matters concerned regarding specific representations related
to a governmental audit? [AAG-SLV 13.10] Consider the following: G305 ] ] ]

e Management has disclosed all instances of identified or sus-
pected noncompliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements whose effects should be consid-
ered by management when preparing the financial statements
(for example, tax or debt limits and debt covenants).
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e Management is responsible for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud,
management has disclosed to the auditor the results of its as-
sessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materi-
ally misstated as a result of fraud; management has disclosed its
knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity in-
volving management, employees who have significant roles in
internal control, and others where the fraud could have a mate-
rial effect on the financial statements; and management’s
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affect-
ing the entity’s financial statements.

e Management has indicated whether it believes the effects of the
uncorrected financial statement misstatements are immaterial,
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as
a whole for each opinion unit.

e Management acknowledges (a) its responsibility for the RSI;
(b) that the RSI is measured and presented in accordance with
prescribed guidelines; and (¢) whether the methods of meas-
urement or presentation have changed from those used in the
prior period and, if so, the reasons for such changes; and (d) any
significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the meas-
urement or presentation of RSI.

e Management acknowledges (a) its responsibility for the presen-
tation of the supplementary information (SI) in accordance with
the applicable criteria; (b) that it believes the SI, including its
form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with appli-
cable criteria; (c) that the methods of measurement or presenta-
tion have not changed from those used in the prior period or, if
the methods of measurement or presentation have changed, the
reasons for such changes; (d) about any significant assumptions
or interpretations underlying the measurement of the SI; and (e)
that when SI is not presented with the audited financial state-
ments, management will make the audited financial statements
readily available to the intended users of the SI and the audi-
tor’s report thereon.

Did the auditor obtain timely and appropriate responses from the enti-
ty’s attorneys concerning litigation, claims, and assessments, or docu-
ment the basis for not seeking direct communication with the entity’s
legal counsel? [AU-C 501.18-.24]

Compliance With Laws and Regulations and Other Compliance
Testing:

Did the auditor inspect correspondence, if any, with relevant licensing
or regulatory authorities? [AU-C 250.1450]

Did the auditor properly consider, perform, and document tests of com-
pliance with applicable laws and regulations that have a direct and mate-
rial effect on the various opinion units within the basic financial
statements, including the following, when applicable:

e [f the auditor’s procedures disclosed instances or indications of
noncompliance with laws and regulations, did the auditor apply
procedures and evaluate the results of those procedures in ac-
cordance with professional standards? [AU-C 250] Consider the
requirements for the auditor to
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— follow up in accordance with professional standards. [AU-C
250.17-.20]

— report the noncompliance with laws and regulations to those
charged with governance in accordance with professional
standards. [AU-C 250.21-.23]

— document a description of the identified or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations and the results of
discussions with management and, when applicable, those
charged with governance and other parties inside or outside
the entity. [AU-C 250.28]

Going Concern Considerations:

Did the auditor consider if there was substantial doubt about the enti-
ty’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time? [AU-C 570.03—.04]

If the auditor believed that there was substantial doubt about the enti-
ty’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time, did the auditor perform appropriate procedures? [AU-C 570]
Consider if

PRP §20,500

the auditor obtained information about management’s plans that
are intended to mitigate the effect of such conditions or events
and evaluate the likelihood that such plans could be implement-
ed effectively. [AU-C 570.08—.11]

the auditor documented [AU-C 570.22]

— the conditions or events that led to the belief that there is
substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

— the elements of management’s plans that the auditor consid-
ered to be particularly significant to overcoming the adverse
effects of the conditions or events.

— the auditing procedures performed and evidence obtained in
connection with the auditor’s evaluation of management’s
plans.

— the auditor’s conclusions about whether substantial doubt
about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time remains or is alleviated.

— the consideration and effect of the auditor’s conclusion on
the financial statements, disclosures, and the audit report.

the auditor’s substantial doubt was alleviated; the auditor con-
sidered the need for disclosure of the principal conditions and
events that initially caused the auditor to believe there was sub-
stantial doubt together with the mitigating factors. [AU-C
570.13]

the auditor’s substantial doubt was not alleviated; the auditor’s
report included an emphasis-of-matter paragraph that adequately
reflects that conclusion. The auditor’s conclusion should be ex-
pressed through the use of the terms substantial doubt and going
concern. [AU-C 570.15-.16]

Peer Review Engagement Checklists—System Reviews
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Did the written representations from management include [AU-C
570.14]

management’s plans that are intended to mitigate the adverse
effects of conditions or events that indicate there is substantial
doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time and the likelihood that those
plans can be effectively implemented?

a statement that the financial statements disclose all the matters
of which management is aware that are relevant to the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, including principal condi-
tions or events and management’s plans?

Communication of Internal Control Related Matters:

Did the auditor report matters relating to the internal control to manage-
ment and those charged with governance? [AU-C 265] Consider if

deficiencies in internal control were identified during the audit;
the auditor performed an evaluation of each deficiency to deter-
mine, on the basis of the work performed, if the deficiencies con-
stituted significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. [AU-C
265.09]

prudent officials, having knowledge of the same facts and cir-
cumstances, would likely reach the same conclusion as the audi-
tor’s classification of the control deficiencies (for instance,
material weakness, significant deficiency, or control deficiency).
[AU-C 265.10]

other deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit
that have not been communicated to management by other par-
ties and that, in the auditor’s professional judgment, are of suf-
ficient importance to merit management’s attention. If other
deficiencies in internal control are communicated orally, the
auditor should document the communication. [AU-C 265.125]

the auditor complied with the requirement not to issue a written
report stating that no significant deficiencies were identified
during an audit. [AU-C 265.16]

Did the written communication regarding significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses include or state the following: [AU-C 265.14]

The purpose of the audit was to express an opinion on the finan-
cial statements, but not to express an opinion on the effective-
ness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting?

The auditor is not expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control?

The definition of the term material weakness and, when rele-
vant, significant deficiency?

An explanation of potential effects of any significant deficien-
cies or material weaknesses?

An appropriate alert restricting the use of the communication?
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

Subsequent Events:

Did the auditor consider information and apply appropriate profession-
al guidance with respect to events occurring subsequent to the date of
the audit report? [AU-C 560] Consider the following: G315 ] ] [l

e The auditor considered appropriate procedures regarding events
subsequent to the balance-sheet date through the date of the
auditor’s report. [AU-C 560.09—-.10]

e The auditor gave appropriate consideration to additional evi-
dence that becomes available prior to the issuance of the finan-
cial statements. [AU-C 560.12—.14]

e If the auditor, subsequent to the date of the report, became
aware of facts that may have existed at that date that might have
affected the report on the financial statements had the auditor
then been aware of such information, the auditor considered the
guidance in professional standards in determining an appropri-
ate course of action and the matter appears to be properly re-
solved. [AU-C 560.15-.18]

e If there is an indication that the auditor concluded that one or
more auditing procedures considered necessary at the time of the
audit of the financial statements in the circumstances were omit-
ted from the audit, the auditor considered the guidance in profes-
sional standards in determining an appropriate course of action
and the matter appears to be properly resolved. [AU-C 585]

Evaluating Audit Findings:

If the auditor concluded that, or is unable to conclude whether, the fi-
nancial statements (opinion units) are materially misstated, did the au-
ditor appropriately modify the opinion in the auditor’s report on the
financial statements? [AU-C 700.20 and AU-C 705] G316 ] ] ]

Communication With Those Charged With Governance:

Did the auditor substantively meet the professional standards regarding
auditor communications as follows: G317 ] ] ]

e Properly determine the appropriate persons within the audited
entity’s governance structure with whom to communicate? [AU-
C 260.07-.09]

o Communicate the following matters to those charged with gov-
ernance, when applicable:

— The auditor’s responsibilities for forming and expressing an

opinion on the financial statements under the applicable fi-

nancial reporting framework, and that the audit does not re-

lieve management or those charged with governance of their
responsibilities? [AU-C360.10]

— An overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit?
[AU-C 360.11]

— The auditor’s views about qualitative aspects of the entity’s
significant accounting practices? [AU-C 260.12a]

— Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit?
[AU-C 260.12b]

— Any disagreements with management? [AU-C 260.12c¢]
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— Other findings or issues significant and relevant to those
charged with governance regarding their responsibility to
oversee the financial reporting process? [AU-C 260.12d]

— Uncorrected misstatements and the effect they may have on
the auditor’s report? The auditor should identify material
uncorrected misstatements individually and request that they
be corrected. [AU-C 260.134a]

— The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior peri-
ods? [AU-C 260.135]

— Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the
attention of management as a result of audit procedures?
[AU-C 260.144a]

— Any significant findings or issues arising from the audit that
were discussed or communicated to management? [AU-C
260.14b)

— Management’s consultation with other accountants, if any?
[AU-C 260.14c]

— Representations the auditor has requested from management?
[AU-C 260.14d]

Communicate the form, timing, and expected general content of
the auditor’s communication with those charged with govern-
ance? [AU-C 260.15]

Communicate, in a timely manner, and in writing, the signifi-
cant audit findings when, in the auditor’s judgment, oral com-
munication would not be adequate; and include in the written
communication that it is intended solely for the information and
use of those charged with governance and management, and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties? [AU-C 260.16—.17]

Consider whether the two-way communication between the audi-
tor and those charged with governance has been adequate for the
purpose of the audit, and if not, the auditor should evaluate the
effect on the auditor’s assessment of risks of material misstate-
ment and ability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
and take appropriate action? [AU-C 260.19]

Document whether the information was communicated and if
the communication was oral, include when and to whom it was
communicated? [AU-C 260.20]

Audit Documentation:

Has the auditor prepared and maintained documentation in accordance
with professional standards? Consider the following requirements:
[AU-C 230]

The audit documentation provides evidence of the auditor’s
basis for a conclusion about the achievement of the overall ob-
jectives of the auditor and evidence that the audit was planned
and performed in accordance with GAAS and applicable legal
and regulatory requirements [AU-C 230.02]
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e The audit documentation is sufficient to enable an experienced
auditor having no previous connection to the audit to under-
stand the nature, timing, and extent of procedures performed;
results of the procedures performed; audit evidence obtained,
and significant findings or issues arising during the audit, the
conclusions reached thereon, and significant professional judg-
ments made in reaching those conclusions. [AU-C 230.08]

e In documenting the nature, timing, and extent of audit procedures
performed, the auditor should record [AU-C 230.09]

— the identifying characteristics of the specific items or matters
tested,

— who performed the audit work and the date such work was
completed, and

— who reviewed the audit work performed and the date and
extent of such review.

e For audit procedures related to the inspection of significant con-
tracts or agreements, the auditor should include abstracts or
copies of those contracts or agreements in the audit documenta-
tion. [AU-C 230.10]

e The auditor should document discussions of significant findings
or issues with management, those charged with governance, and
others, including the nature of significant findings or issues
discussed and when and with whom the discussions took place.
[AU-C 230.11]

o If the auditor departs from a presumptively mandatory GAAS
requirement, the auditor documented the justification for the
departure and how other procedures performed in the circum-
stances were sufficient to achieve the intent of that requirement.
[AU-C 230.13]

e If the auditor performs new or additional audit procedures or
draws new conclusions after the date of the auditor’s report, the
auditor should document the circumstances encountered; the
new or additional procedures performed, audit evidence obtained,
conclusions reached, and their effect on the auditor’s report; and
when and by whom the resulting changes to audit documenta-
tion were made and reviewed. [AU-C 230.14]

e The auditor should document the report release date in the audit
documentation. [AU-C 230.15]

e The auditor’s documentation was consistent with the assem-
bling of the engagement documentation file and completion of
the administrative process of assembling the audit file on a
timely basis, no later than 60 days following the report release
date. [AU-C 230.16]

e The auditor’s documentation established reasonable procedures
for retention of and access to audit documentation for a period
of at least five years. [AU-C 230.17]

o If the auditor finds it necessary to modify existing audit docu-
mentation or add new audit documentation after the documenta-
tion completion date, the auditor should document the specific
reasons for making the change and when and by whom it was
made and reviewed. [AU-C 230.18]
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e The auditor should adopt reasonable procedures to maintain the
confidentiality of client information. [AU-C 230.19]

e A record of the significant changes to the overall strategy and
audit plan and resulting changes to the planned nature, timing,
and extent of audit procedures explain why the significant chang-
es were made and why the overall strategy and audit plan were
finally adopted for the audit. It also reflects the appropriate re-
sponse to the significant changes occurring during the audit.
[AU-C 300.A23**]

e Documentation of the testing performed on the reconciling
items and journal entries reconciles the government-wide and
fund financial statements. [AAG-SLV 10.19-.21]

e Levels of performance materiality for each opinion unit are
used in the audit. [AAG-SLV 4.81-.84]

e Summary of uncorrected misstatements related to known and
likely misstatements, unless considered trivial, including those
corrected by management, is provided. [AAG-SLV 13.02-.06]

e The auditor’s conclusion concerning whether uncorrected mis-
statements, individually or in the aggregate, cause the financial
statements to be materially misstated, and the basis for that con-
clusion is provided. [AAG-SLV 13.02-.06]

Were appropriate procedures applied to accompanying SI [AU-C
725.05—-.08] and RSI? [AU-C 730]

For the engagement, did the personnel adequately complete all forms,
checklists, or questionnaires, if applicable, required by firm policy for
the following areas? [QC 10.35-.51 and QC 10.A32—.A62]

e Work program
e Disclosure and reporting checklist
e  Working paper and financial statement reviews
If standardized forms were not used for any of the preceding areas, is

there adequate documentation of these areas? [QC 10.35-.51 and QC
10.A32-.A62]

Were the firm’s guidelines for the form and content of working papers
complied with? [QC 10.35—-.51 and QC 10.A32—-.A62]

Supervision and Review:

Did the engagement partner take responsibility for the following: [AU-
C 220.17]

e The direction, supervision, and performance of the audit en-
gagement in compliance with professional standards, applicable
legal and regulatory requirements, and the firm’s policies and
procedures?

e The auditor’s report being appropriate in the circumstances?

Did the engagement partner take responsibility for reviews being per-
formed in accordance with the firm’s review policies and procedures?
[AU-C 220.18]

Did the engagement partner, through review of the audit documentation
and discussion with the engagement team, determine that sufficient
appropriate audit evidence was obtained to support the auditor’s report
issued? [AU-C 220.19]
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Did the auditor perform substantive procedures relating to the financial
statement closing process, such as agreeing or reconciling the financial
statements with the underlying accounting records and examining ma-
terial journal entries and other adjustments made during the course of
preparing the financial statements? [AU-C 330.21]

Did the auditor determine whether uncorrected misstatements were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial state-
ments (opinion units)? The auditor should consider the following: [AU-C
450.11]

e The size and nature of the misstatements, both in relation to
particular classes of transactions, account balances, or disclo-
sures and the financial statements as a whole, and the particular
circumstances of their occurrence

e The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances, or dis-
closures and the financial statement as a whole

Does it appear (lack of contrary evidence) that the firm complied with
its policies to assign management responsibilities so that commercial
considerations did not override the quality of work performed; complied
with its policies and procedures that address performance evaluation,
compensation, and advancement (including incentive systems) with
regard to its personnel, in order to demonstrate the firm’s overarching
commitment to quality; and provided sufficient and appropriate re-
sources for the development, documentation, and support of its quality
control policies and procedures? [QC 10.A5]

Does it appear engagement personnel (including leased and per diem
employees) possessed an appropriate mix of experience, expertise, and
technical training in relation to the complexity or other requirements of
the engagement and the involvement of supervisory personnel? [QC
10.A11]

Did the personnel assigned to this engagement appear to be familiar with
the applicable professional pronouncements (FASB, GASB, and
AICPA)? [QC 10.A11]

Does it appear that the firm complied with its policies and procedures
to ensure that the engagement team was provided sufficient time to
carry out its work? [QC 10.A11]

e Consider if the engagement team’s audit hours appeared rea-
sonable for this engagement (including prior to commencement
of field work, during and after completion of field work, and
partner involvement)

Does it appear that the practitioner in charge of the engagement pos-
sessed the knowledge, skills, and abilities (competencies) to fulfill his
or her responsibilities on the engagement including an understanding of
[QC 10.A18-.A21 and QC 10.A24—.A35]

o the role of the firm’s system of quality control and the AICPA’s
Code of Professional Conduct and, if applicable, chapter 3 of
Government Auditing Standards?

o the performance, supervision, and reporting aspects of the en-
gagement?
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o the applicable accounting, auditing, or attestation professional
standards, including those standards directly related to the in-
dustry in which a client operates?

o the industry in which a client operates, including the industry’s
organization and operating characteristics, to identify the areas
of high or unusual risk associated with an engagement and to
evaluate the reasonableness of industry specific estimates?

o the skills that indicate sound professional judgment?

e how the organization is dependent on or enabled by information
technologies and the manner in which information systems are
used to record and maintain financial information?

If required by firm policy, was the staff on this engagement appropri-
ately evaluated? [QC 10.32 and QC 10.A22—-.A23]

Does it appear that involvement by the owner, partner, manager, and
when applicable, the engagement quality control reviewer was ade-
quate and appropriately timed to provide for planning and supervision
as the job progressed? [QC 10.35-.51 and QC 10.A32—-.A62]

If required by firm policy, was an appropriate preissuance review com-
pleted and documented? [QC 10.35-.51 and QC 10.A32—-.A62]

Were the firm’s guidelines for the performance of an engagement quality
review complied with? [QC 10.35-.51 and QC 10.A32—.A62]

Were any circumstances noted in which the firm consulted or should
have consulted regarding an engagement matter (for instance, a com-
plex, unusual, or technical issue) with individuals within the firm, with
an external party, or by researching in applicable professional litera-
ture, based on the firm’s policies and procedures or when the complexi-
ty or nature of the issue warranted consultation? [QC 10.35-.51 and
QC 10.A32-.A62] Consider the following:

o Ifan individual was consulted (internally or externally), was the
consultation done on a timely basis and, does it appear he or she
was aware of all relevant facts and circumstances?

e If professional literature was researched, does it appear the re-
search was thorough and the sources consulted were complete,
correct, and up-to-date?

e Does it appear the person(s) consulted (internally or externally)
or the individual(s) performing the research had an appropriate
level of knowledge, competence, and judgment and, if applica-
ble, authority?

e Based on the facts and circumstances, were the firm’s conclu-
sions reasonable and consistent with professional standards?

e Is the firm’s report, the financial statements, or other infor-
mation affected by the matter consistent with the results of the
consultation?

o If the engagement records indicated a difference of opinion be-
tween the engagement personnel (including leased and per diem
employees) and specialist or other consultant, was the differ-
ence resolved in accordance with firm policy and was the basis
of the resolution appropriately documented?
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IV. REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ques. N/A! Yes No* Ref.

Auditor’s Reports:

Does (do) the auditor’s report(s) on the basic financial statements of the
reporting entity or primary government only financial statements include
all required matters concerning the financial position and results of fi-
nancial operations of the governmental entity’s respective opinion units
and cash flows of proprietary funds, as applicable? [AU-C 700; AAG-
SLV 14.01-.79] G401 ] ] ]

If the financial statements were prepared in conformity with the require-
ments of a governmental regulatory agency and are intended solely for
filing with that regulatory agency, has an other-matter paragraph been
included that restricts the use of the report solely to those within the enti-
ty, the parties to the contract or agreement, or the regulatory agency to
whose jurisdiction the entity is subject? [AU-C 800.20; AAG-SLV
15.13d] G402 ] ] ]

If the financial statements were prepared in conformity with the require-
ments of a governmental regulatory agency and the report is intended for
distribution other than solely for filing with that regulatory agency, does
the report consist of the standard form of report appropriately modified for
departures from GAAP and include an additional paragraph expressing an
opinion on whether the financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the special purpose framework? [AU-C 700 and 800.21; AAG-SLV

15.15] G403 L] L] L]
Is the report dated in conformity with the requirements of professional
standards? [AU-C 700.41] G404 [ [l [l

e The audit report should be dated no earlier than the date on which
the auditor has obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence on
which to base the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements,
including evidence that

— the audit documentation has been reviewed;

— all the statements that the financial statements comprise, in-
cluding the related notes, have been prepared; and

— management has asserted that it has taken responsibility for
those financial statements.

Does the report appropriately include the basic elements required under
professional standards and is appropriate language used for modifying
the opinion in the circumstances described in such standards? [AU-C
700.22—.41 and 705] The report should G405 [ ] ]

e be in writing. [AU-C 700.22]
o include the word independent in the title. [AU-C 700.23]

e be addressed as required by the circumstances of the engagement.
[AU-C 700.24 and .A19%*]

I The “N/A” column should be used when the item either does not exist or is not material.

# All “No” answers should be handled in either of the following ways: (1) discussed on a Matter for Further Consideration (MFC) form with
the MFC form number noted in the “Ref.” column or (2) discussed on the pages provided at the end of this checklist if no MFC form was generat-
ed.
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

o identify the entity whose financial statements have been audited,
state that the financial statements have been audited, identify the
title of each statement that the financial statements comprise, and
specify the date or period covered by each financial statement that
the financial statements comprise. [AU-C 700.25]

— refer to each opinion unit covered by the report, even though
some of those opinion units do not have distinct or separate
financial statements. (The reference in the introductory para-
graph to the financial statements for the aggregate remaining
fund information is meant to refer to the aggregate of the fi-
nancial statements for the funds and fund types that comprise
that opinion unit.) [AAG-SLV 14.14]

— identify the title of each statement (and the related notes
thereto) [AU-C 700.A22] that the financial statements com-
prise. [AU-C 700.25 and .A22—-.A23**; AAG-SLV 14.14]

— refer to the government’s major funds individually, or alter-
natively, refer to them in a general manner if the financial
statements clearly identify which governmental and enterprise
funds are major. [AAG-SLV 14.16]

— specify the date or period covered by each financial statement
that the financial statements comprise. [AU-C 700.25 and
A20-.A23%%]

e include a section with the heading “Management’s Responsibility
for the Financial Statements.” [AU-C 700.26; AAG-SLV 14.18]

e describe management’s responsibility for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements. The description of man-
agement’s responsibility should not be referenced to a separate
statement by management about such responsibilities, if such a
statement is included in a document containing the auditor’s re-
port. [AU-C 700.27—.28 and .A24— A25%**]

e include a section with the heading “Auditor’s Responsibility” and
state that the responsibility of the auditor is to express an opinion
on the financial statements based on the audit. [AU-C 700.29-.30]

e state that the audit was conducted in accordance with GAAS and
should identify the United States of America as the country of
origin of those standards. [AU-C 700.31 and .A2%*]

e include a section with the heading “Opinion” or “Opinions,” if
there are multiple opinion units. [AU-C 700.34]

e identify the applicable financial reporting framework and its
origin. [AU-C 700.36; AAG-SLV 14.28-.29]

e be appropriately modified in accordance with professional stand-
ards, if applicable. [AU-C 705]

e if applicable, should cover information that is not required by the
applicable financial reporting framework, but is nevertheless pre-
sented as part of the basic financial statements if it cannot be
clearly differentiated (such as budgetary comparisons). [AU-C
700.58]
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

Note: Practitioners opining on financial statements prepared using
a special purpose framework? may wish to refer to the AICPA’s
Practice Aid Applying OCBOA in State and Local Government
Financial Statements.

Does the report include all the required elements for a special purpose
financial statement? [AU-C 800; AAG-SLV 15.13] Consider the follow-
ing: G406 ] L] [

e The explanation of management’s responsibility should also make
reference to its responsibility for determining that the applicable
financial reporting framework is acceptable in the circumstances,
when management has a choice of financial reporting frameworks
in the preparation of such financial statements. [AU-C 800.184]

e The report should describe the purpose for which the financial
statements are prepared or refer to a note that contains that infor-
mation, when the financial statements are prepared in accordance
with a regulatory or contractual basis of accounting. [AU-C
800.185]

e Professional standards have been properly complied with for re-
ports on single financial statements and specific elements. [AU-C
805]

e If the special purpose financial statements are not prepared in
accordance with a regulatory basis of accounting intended for
general use, then the report should include an emphasis-of-matter
paragraph under an appropriate heading that indicates that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with the applica-
ble special purpose framework, refers to the note to the financial
statements that describes that framework, and states that the spe-
cial purpose framework is a basis of accounting other than
GAAP. [AU-C 800.19 and .21]

e If the auditor is required by law or regulation to use a specific
layout, form, or wording of the auditor’s report, the auditor’s re-
port should contain the minimum elements required by GAAS.
[AU-C 800.22]

Has the auditor’s report on the financial statements been appropriately
modified with explanatory language for the following circumstances,
if applicable: [See examples in AAG-SLV 14, appendix A] G407 [ [l [l

e Appropriate reference was made to the audit of a component au-
ditor in the auditor’s report if the auditor decides to make refer-
ence instead of assume responsibility. [AU-C 600.27-.30]

e To prevent the financial statements from being misleading be-
cause of unusual circumstance, the financial statements contain a
departure from an accounting principle promulgated by a body
designated by the AICPA Council to establish such principles. [AU-
C700.A14-.A15%*]

e There is substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time. [AU-C 570.12—
.16]

% The cash, tax, regulatory, and other bases of accounting that utilize a definite set of logical, reasonable criteria that is applied to all material items
appearing in financial statements are commonly referred to as other comprehensive bases of accounting.
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e There has been a material change between periods in accounting
principles or in the method of their application. [AU-C 708.07—
.09]

e Other significant or unusual situations appropriately presented or
disclosed in the financial statements about which the auditor con-
siders it necessary to include an emphasis-of-matter paragraph.
[AU-C 706.A2**]

e RSI has been omitted, the presentation departs materially from the
guidelines, the auditor is unable to complete prescribed procedures
with respect to the RSI, or the auditor is unable to remove substan-
tial doubt about the conformance of the RSI to the guidelines. [AU-C
730.07]

e Other information in a document containing the audited financial
statements is materially inconsistent with the information in the
financial statements. [AU-C 720.09—.18]

e The omission of any required basic financial statements as re-
quired by the applicable financial reporting framework. [AU-C
705.A7d**]

If the financial statements of a prior period are presented and have been
audited by a predecessor auditor whose report is not presented, and the
predecessor auditor’s report on the prior period’s financial statements is
not reissued, has the successor auditor included the appropriate reference
to the predecessor auditor in an other-matter paragraph? [AU-C 700.54]

When the entity presents SI with the financial statements, the auditor
should report on the SI in either (1) an other-matter paragraph in accord-
ance with AU-C section 706, Emphasis-of-Matter Paragraphs and
Other-Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report (AICPA,
Professional Standards), or (2) in a separate report on the SI. The other-
matter paragraph or separate report should include the following ele-
ments: [AU-C 725.09]

e A statement that the audit was conducted for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements [AU-C 725.09«]

e A statement that the SI is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial state-
ments [AU-C 725.095]

e A statement that the SI is the responsibility of management and
was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying account-
ing and other records used to prepare the basic financial state-
ments [AU-C 725.09¢]

e A statement that the SI has been subjected to the auditing proce-
dures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other rec-
ords used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the finan-
cial statements themselves and other additional procedures, in
accordance with GAAS [AU-C 725.09d]
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If the auditor issues an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements and the auditor has concluded that the SI is fairly stat-
ed, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements
as a whole, a statement that, in the auditor's opinion, the SI is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic finan-
cial statements as a whole [AU-C 725.09¢]

If the auditor issues a qualified opinion on the financial state-
ments and the qualification has an effect on the SI, a statement
that, in the auditor's opinion, except for the effects on the SI of
(refer to the paragraph in the auditor's report explaining the quali-
fication), such information is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole [AU-C
725.091]

If an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion was issued on the
basic financial statements, the auditor cannot issue an opinion on
SI. [AU-C 725.05d]

For RSI, did the auditor perform required procedures and report on the
information in an other-matter paragraph? [AU-C 730]

Financial Statement Presentations:

Financial Presentation Content:

If the presentation is intended to meet the minimum requirements for
general purpose external financial reporting (for instance, not a single
financial statement presentation or limited reporting engagement finan-
cial statements), does the presentation include the following, when appli-
cable: [GASB 2200.102—-.103]

PRP §20,500

Management’s discussion and analysis

Basic financial statements, such as

— government-wide financial statements on net position and
activities

— appropriate fund financial statements

— appropriate presentations related to major funds

— reconciliations between government-wide and fund financial
statements, when appropriate

— cash flow statements for proprietary funds using the direct
method

— budgetary comparison statements within the basic financial
statements when such reporting option as a basic financial
statement is elected

— notes to the financial statements

RSI other than the Management’s Discussion & Analysis
(MD&A), when applicable, including the following:

— Budgetary comparison schedules when not reported within
the basic financial statements [GASB 2200.181-.183 and
2400.102-.104]

— Schedules of funding progress and employer contributions,
for entities participating in a sole or agent defined benefit
pension plan [GASB Pe5.125-.132]
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— Schedules of funding progress and of employer contributions
for OPEB plans that are administered [GASB 43 par. 13, 17,
and 31 (GASB Cod. sec. P050.109, .113, .127, and 2200 fn
41)]

— Asset condition schedules for governmental entities using the
modified approach for infrastructure assets [GASB 1400.118-
.119]

Do the government-wide and fund financial statements contain the ap-
propriate content and presentation format, and are the financial statements
free of any material undisclosed departures from the basis of accounting
purported to be presented? [GASB 2200]

If the financial statements are intended to be a presentation in accordance
with a special purpose framework, do the financial statements contain
the appropriate accounts and contents for such a presentation consistent
with the basis of accounting purported, including applicable note disclo-
sures? [AU-C 800]

Note: Practitioners opining on financial statements prepared using a
special purpose framework’ may wish to refer to the AICPA Practice
Aid Applying OCBOA in State and Local Government Financial State-
ments.

If the financial statements are intended to be a complete presentation for
a special-purpose government, do the financial statements contain the
appropriate contents for such presentation? [GASB Sp20]

Are the financial statements suitably titled? [Generally Accepted]

Management’s Discussion and Analysis:

Is MD&A materially complete and confined to the following, if relevant:
[GASB 2200.106—.109]

e A brief discussion of the basic financial statements, including the
relationship of the statements to each other and the significant
differences in the information they provide

e Condensed financial information and related analysis from the
government-wide statements comparing current year to prior year
(when comparative financial statements are presented, this com-
parison should be for each year presented)

e An analysis of the government’s overall financial position and
results of operations that addresses whether financial position has
improved or deteriorated as a result of the year’s operations

e An analysis of balances and transactions of individual funds, in-
cluding reasons for changes in fund balances or net position

e An analysis of significant variations between original and final
budget amounts and between final budget amounts and actual
results for the general fund or its equivalent

3 See footnote 2.
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e A description of significant capital asset and long-term debt activ-
ity for the year, including a discussion of capital expenditure
commitments, changes in credit ratings, and any debt limitations
that may affect future financing

e A description of assessed condition information for governments
that use the modified approach for reporting infrastructure assets

e A description of currently known facts, decisions, or conditions
that are expected to have a significant effect on financial position
or results of operations

Budgetary Comparison Schedules/Statements:

Does the presentation include the following budgetary information, when
applicable: [GASB 2200.181-.183 and 2400.102—.104] G417 L] L] L]

e Budgetary comparisons for the general fund and each major spe-
cial revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget, or as
an alternative for governments that are unable to present budget-
ary comparisons for the general fund and each major special rev-
enue fund due to significant budgetary perspective differences, a
budgetary comparison for an organization or program perspective
that is legally adopted [GASB 2200.182 and 2400.102]

e The original budget, final budget, and actual balances for the au-
dit period [GASB 2200.182 and 2400.102]

o If the budgetary information is different from GAAP or the basis of
presentation in the basic financial statements, accompanying in-
formation that reconciles budgetary information to GAAP or
OCBOA information (either in a schedule or in the notes to RSI)
[GASB 2200.183 and 2400.103 and .119]

Modified Approach on Eligible
Infrastructure Assets, If Elected:

Does the presentation include the following RSI schedules: [GASB
1400.118-.119] G418 [ [l [l

e Assessed condition of the infrastructure assets, performed at least
every three years, for the three most recent complete condition
assessments

o Estimated annual amount calculated and actual amounts expensed
to preserve and maintain the condition level established for the
assets, for each of the past five reporting periods

Comparative Financial Statements:

If the auditor is expressing an opinion on comparative information of the
prior period, does the prior period’s information contain sufficient detail
to constitute a fair presentation in conformity with GAAP? [AU-C
700.44—.47] G419 [ [l [l
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Component Units:

If the governmental entity presentation includes component units, do the
presentations meet the following requirements, when applicable: [GASB
2600]

e The component units included within the reporting entity financial
statements meet the component unit criteria. [GASB 2100.119-
.141]

e If separate financial statements of a component unit are issued,
the relationship of the component unit to the reporting or over-
sight entity is disclosed. [GASB 2600.125]

e In the reporting entity financial statements of the primary gov-
ernment, the component units are properly reported as blended or
discrete. [GASB 2600.107—.117]

e Component units that are fiduciary in nature have been properly
excluded from the government-wide presentation and only in-
cluded in the fund financial statements. [GASB 2600.107]

e All other nonfiduciary discretely presented component units have
been reported in a separate column or columns to the right of the
total column for the primary government statements. [GASB
2600.107]

Note Disclosures:
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Disclosures:

Are the disclosures adequate regarding the following significant account-
ing policies:

e Description of the government-wide financial statements noting
the exclusion of fiduciary activities and similar component units
[GASB 2300.1064]

e Description of component units, their relationships to the primary
government, how they are reported (blended or discretely pre-
sented) and the reasons therefore; the criteria for including com-
ponent units (that is, the reason[s] an entity is reported as a
component unit); how to obtain separate financial statements for
individual component units; and the effect of component units
with differing fiscal years [GASB 14 par. 60, as amended (GASB
Cod. Sec. 2300.901 and 2600.119); GASB 14 par. 61 (GASB Cod.
Sec. 2300.106a and .901 and 2600.120)]

e A description of the activities accounted for in the columns for
major funds, internal service funds, and fiduciary fund types pre-
sented in the basic financial statements [GASB 2300.106a and
1300.125]

e Measurement focus and basis of accounting applied to the gov-
ernment-wide presentations and the fund financial statements
[NCGALI 6, appendix, as amended (GASB Cod. Sec. 2300.901);
GASB 34, par. 115 as amended by GASB 63 par. 8 (GASB Cod.
Sec. 2300.106a)]
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e Revenue recognition policies in the fund financial statements,
including the length of time used to define “available” for the
purposes of revenue recognition under the modified accrual basis
of accounting [NCGA 1 par. 69 (GASB Cod. Sec. 1600.108 and
2300.106a); GASB 38 par. 7 (GASB Cod. Sec. 1600.106 and
2300.106a); GASB 34 par. 115 as amended by GASB 63 par. 8]

e Policy for elimination of internal activity in the government-wide
financial statements [GASB 2300.106a(6) and 2200.131]

e Policies for capitalizing assets and for estimating the useful lives of
those assets, and if applicable, a description of the modified ap-
proach for infrastructure [GASB 2300.106a(7), 1400.102 and .104]

e Types of transactions included in program revenues [GASB
2300.106a(8) and 2200.132—.136]

e Ifapplicable, policies for allocating indirect expenses to functions
in the statement of activities [GASB 2300.106a(8) and 2200.126—
131]

e The policy for defining operating and nonoperating revenues of
proprietary funds [GASB 2300.106a(9) and P80.118]

e The definition of cash and cash equivalents used in the statement
of cash flows [GASB 2300.106a(11) and 2450.106—.108]

e Policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net position are available [GASB
2300.106a(12) and 1800.134]

e Significant or unusual accounting treatment for material account
balances or activities [NCGAI 6, appendix, as amended (GASB
2300.901)]

e The method and period of amortization for intangible assets [APB
22, par. 13, GASB 2300.901]

e The basis for stating inventories, including the method of deter-
mining cost [ARB 43 ch. 3A par. 9; APB 22, par. 13]

e The government’s fund balance classification policies and proce-
dures related to committed and assigned fund balances [GASB
1800.160]

e The government’s policy regarding whether it considers restricted
or unrestricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditure
is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available [GASB 1800.155 and .160c]

e The government’s policy regarding whether committed, assigned,
or unassigned amounts are considered to have been spent when an
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of
those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used
[GASB 1800.160c]

e Information related to stabilization arrangements even if the ar-
rangement does not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted
or committed [GASB 1800.163]

e The government’s minimum fund balance policies, if applicable
[GASB 1800.164]
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Financial Instruments:

Are the investment disclosures organized by investment type, unless
otherwise required? [GASB 40 par. 4 (GASB Cod. Sec. [50.124)]

Are the disclosures required by GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits with
Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase Agreements),
and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, made for the primary government,
including its blended component units, with the risk disclosures required
by GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures—
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 3, also made for governmental
and business-type activities, individual major funds, nonmajor funds in
the aggregate, or fiduciary funds when the risk exposures are significant-
ly greater than the deposit and investment risks of the primary govern-
ment? [GASB 40 par. 5 (GASB Cod. Sec. C20.104, 150.122, and
155.107)]

For deposits with financial institutions and investments (including repur-
chase agreements), do disclosures include:

e a brief description of the types of investments authorized by legal
or contractual provisions?

e the differences in authorized investment types; if the types of
investments authorized for different funds, fund types, blended
component units, or discretely presented component units differ
significantly from those authorized for the primary government;
and if those funds, fund types, blended component units, or dis-
cretely presented component units have material investment ac-
tivity compared with the reporting entity’s investment activity?
[GASB 3 par. 65 (GASB Cod. Sec. 150.125)]

e deposit and investment policies regarding credit risk, custodial
credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and for-
eign currency risk, or a statement that the entity has no such poli-
cies? [GASB 40 par. 6 (GASB Cod. Sec. C20.109 and 150.127)]

e the U.S. dollar balances of deposits and investments that are ex-
posed to foreign currency risk organized by currency denomina-
tion and, if applicable, investment type? [GASB C20.108]

e significant violations during the period of legal or contractual
provisions for deposits and investments and actions taken to ad-
dress such violations? [GASB 3 par. 66 (GASB Cod. Sec.
C20.106 and 150.126); GASB 38 par. 9 (GASB Cod. Sec.
1200.112, C20.106, and 150.126)]

o losses recognized during the period due to default by counterpar-
ties to deposit or investment transactions and amounts recovered
from prior period losses if not separately displayed on the activity
statement? [GASB C20.110]

Investments:
For investments, do note disclosures include:
¢ information about investment valuation, including the

— methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair
value of investments, if that fair value is based on other than
quoted market prices?

— policy for determining which investments, if any, are reported
at amortized cost? [GASB 31 par. 15 (GASB Cod. Sec.
150.120)]
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o the credit quality ratings of investments in debt securities (includ-
ing investments in external investment pools, money market
funds, bond mutual funds, and other pooled investments of fixed
income securities) as described by rating agencies as of the finan-
cial date? [GASB 40 par. 7 (GASB Cod. Sec. 150.137)]

e concentration of credit risk, by amount and issuer when invest-
ments in any one issuer represents 5 percent or more of total in-
vestments based on the level of detail described in GASB
Statement No. 40 paragraph 5?7 [GASB 40 par. 11 (GASB Cod.
Sec. 150.139); GASB 40 par. 12 (GASB Cod. Sec. Pe5.124e);
GASB 40 par. 13 (GASB Cod. Sec. Pe6.104c))]

o information about the interest rate risk of debt instruments using a
disclosure method described in GASB Statement No. 40 para-
graph 15, as amended, with information about assumptions, re-
garding cash flows, interest rate factors, and other factors that
affect interest rate risk? [GASB 40 par. 14 and 15, as amended
(GASB Cod. Sec. 150.140-.141)]

e the terms of investments with fair values that are highly sensitive
to changes in interest rates. [GASB 40 par. 14 and 16 (GASB
Cod. Sec. 150.131 and .133)]

o for any investments in external investment pools that are not SEC
registered, a brief description of any regulatory oversight for the
pool and whether the fair value of the position in the pool is the
same as the value of the pool shares?

e any involuntary participation in an external investment pool?

e if an entity cannot obtain information from a pool sponsor to al-
low it to determine the fair value of its investment in the pool, the
methods used and significant assumptions made in determining
that fair value and the reasons for having had to make such an
estimate?

e any income from investments associated with one fund that is
assigned to another fund? [GASB 31 par. 15 (GASB Cod. Sec.
150.120)]

e for governmental entities that disclose realized gains/losses on
investments, do the notes disclose if [GASB 25 par. 29 fn 10
(GASB Cod. Sec. Pe5.121 fn 9); GASB 43 par. 27 (GASB Cod.
Sec. P050.123d and fn6); GASB 31 par. 15 (GASB Cod. Sec.
150.120)]

— the amounts include all realized gains and losses for the year?

— the calculation of realized gains or losses is independent of a
calculation of the net change in the fair value of investments?

— realized gains or losses on investments that had been held in
more than one fiscal year and sold in the current year were
included as a net change in the fair value of investments re-
ported in the prior year(s) and the current year?

o the following disclosures related to reverse repurchase agree-
ments: [GASB 155.106—.114]

— Source of legal or contractual authority to enter into reverse
repurchase agreements?

— Any significant violations of such authority during the peri-
od, and actions taken to address such violations?
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For other than yield maintenance agreements, any credit risk
associated with such agreements?

For yield maintenance agreements, the fair value of securities
to be repurchased and a description of the terms of the
agreements?

Any losses resulting from repurchase agreement transactions,
if not separately displayed?

Whether the maturities of the investments made with pro-
ceeds of reverse repurchase agreements generally match the
maturities of the agreements?

o the following disclosures related to securities lending transac-
tions: [GASB 2300.107s and 160.109—.114]

Source of legal or contractual authority to lend securities?

Any significant violations of such authority during the peri-
od, and actions taken to address such violations?

General description of the transaction, types of securities lent,
collateral received, the entity’s ability to pledge or sell collat-
eral securities, amount by which fair value of collateral is re-
quired to exceed the value of the underlying securities, any
restrictions on loans, and any loss indemnification provided?

Whether the maturities of investments made with collateral
generally match the lent securities maturities, as well as the
extent of such matching at the financial statement date?

Any investment credit risk related to the lending transactions?
Any losses resulting from securities lending transactions, if
not separately displayed?

Any exposure to custodial credit risk related to the underlying
securities and for the collateral securities?

e any losses recognized during the period due to default by coun-
terparties to investment transactions and amounts recovered from
prior period losses if not separately displayed on the operating
statement? [GASB 150.135]

Derivative Instruments:

For derivative instruments, do note disclosures include the following:

e The following summary disclosures for all derivative instruments,
including investment and hedging derivatives, organized by gov-
ernmental activities, business-type activities, and fiduciary funds
and separated by category and type of derivative:

Notional or face amount of the derivative

Fair value changes during the period and location in the finan-
cial statements of where the fair value changes are reported

Fair values of the derivative at period end and the location in
the financial statements of where the fair value is reported

If fair value is based on other than quoted market prices, the
methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value

Fair values of any hedging derivatives that have been re-
classified to an investment derivative during the period and
the deferral amount that was reclassified
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The following specific disclosures for hedging derivatives:

The government’s objective for entering into the hedging
derivative

The significant terms of the hedging derivative instrument,
including the effective and maturity dates of the instrument
notational amounts; reference rates, such as indexes or inter-
est rates; embedded options, such as caps, floors, or collars;
the date when the hedging derivative instrument was entered
into and when it is scheduled to terminate or mature; and the
amount of cash paid or received, if any, when a forward con-
tract or swap (including swaptions) was entered into.

Details about the entity’s exposure, when applicable, to credit
risk, interest rate risk, basis risk, termination risk, rollover
risk, foreign currency risk, and market-access risk.

Details of the net cash flows in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclo-
sures, paragraphs 10—11, including principal and interest re-
quirements to maturity, presented separately, for each of the
five subsequent fiscal years and in five-year increments
thereafter. Interest requirements for variable-rate debt should
be determined using the rate in effect at the financial state-
ment date and the terms by which the interest rates change for
variable-rate debt.

The following other derivative disclosures to the extent applicable:

Any contingent features included in the derivative instrument

The net debt service requirements of hedged debt considering
the hedging derivative instrument

Any embedded derivatives or other hybrid instruments
Descriptive and fair value information about any synthetic
guaranteed investment contracts

Capital Assets Disclosures:

Are the following disclosures adequate regarding capital assets (includ-
ing intangible assets), if applicable:

PRP §20,500

The following disclosures divided into major classes of capital
assets, as well as between capital assets associated with govern-
mental activities and business-type activities, and between assets
that are not being depreciated and those that are being depreciat-

ed:

[GASB 2300.111-.116]

Beginning and end-of-year balances separated between his-
torical cost and accumulated depreciation

Reporting period additions and sales or dispositions

Reporting period depreciation expense, with disclosure of the
amounts charged to each of the functions in the statement of
activities

The method or methods used to compute depreciation for each
major class of depreciable asset [GASB 2300.128]

For collections of works of art and historical treasures not capital-
ized, a description of the collection, and the reasons these assets
are not capitalized [GASB 2300.113]
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The carrying amount of impaired capital assets that are idle at
period end, regardless of whether the impairment is considered
permanent or temporary [GASB 1400.176 and 2300.107gg]

The following disclosures while the entity is applying the general
infrastructure asset transition provisions of GASB 34, paragraphs
141-144: [GASB 1400.141-.144]

— A description of the infrastructure assets being reported and
of those that are not reported

— A description of any eligible infrastructure assets that the
government has decided to report using the modified ap-
proach

Long-Term Liabilities Disclosures:

Are the following disclosures adequate regarding long-term liabilities
(both long-term debt, such as bonds, notes, loans, and leases payable,
and other long-term liabilities, such as compensated absences and claims
and judgments) divided between liabilities associated with governmental
activities and those associated with business-type activities:

Beginning and end-of-year balances by type of long-term liability
[GASB 2300.1144]

Increases and decreases separately presented [GASB 2300.1145]

The portions of each type of long-term liability that is due within
one year of the statement date [GASB 2300.114c]

Which governmental funds typically have been used to liquidate
other long-term liabilities in prior years [GASB 2300.114d]

Debt service requirements to maturity including [GASB
2300.1067 and 1500.118]

— principal and interest requirements to maturity, presented
separately for each of the five subsequent years and in five-
year increments thereafter

— the terms by which interest rates change for any variable rate
debt

Interest costs:

Does the entity disclose the following with respect to inter-
est cost:

a. If no interest cost is capitalized, the amount of interest
cost incurred and charged to expense during the period?

b. If some interest cost is capitalized, the total amount of
interest cost incurred and the amount capitalized?
[GASB 62 par. 22; GASB 1400.137]

Debt refundings resulting in defeasance of debt, including disclo-
sure of cash flow differences and economic gain or loss [GASB
D20.111-.115]

Unpaid debt that has been fully defeased [GASB D20.111-.114]
Nature of any restrictions on assets related to debt

Demand bonds [GASBI 1 par. 11]

Conduit debt obligations [GASBI 2 par. 3; GASB C65.102—-.103]
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e Landfill closure and postclosure care costs and liabilities [GASB
L10.115-.116]

e Pollution remediation obligations [GASB 49, effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2007]

e Claims and judgments [GASB 2300.106d]
e Capital lease obligations [GASB 2300.1074]

e Special assessment debt and related activities [GASB 2300.107¢
and S40.126-.127]

e Bond, tax, or revenue anticipation notes excluded from govern-
mental fund liabilities or current liabilities in proprietary funds
[NCGAI9 fn 5; GASB B50 fnl]

Short-Term Debt Disclosures:

Are the following disclosures adequate regarding short-term debt obliga-

tions and activity: G429 ] ] ]
e Schedule of changes in short-term debt balances [GASB
2300.118a]
e The purpose for which the short-term debt was issued [GASB
2300.118b]

Interfund Balances and Transfers Disclosures:

Are the following disclosures adequate regarding interfund balances and
activity, if applicable: G430 ] ] ]

For interfund balances:

e Amounts due from other funds by individual major fund,
nonmajor governmental funds in the aggregate, nonmajor enter-
prise funds in the aggregate, internal service funds in the aggre-
gate, and fiduciary fund type [GASB 2300.1204¢]

e The purpose of interfund balances [GASB 2300.1205]

e Interfund balances that are not expected to be repaid within one
year from the date of the financial statements [GASB 2300.120c¢]

For interfund transfers and activity:

e Amounts transferred from other funds by individual major fund,
nonmajor governmental funds in the aggregate, nonmajor enter-
prise funds in the aggregate, internal service funds in the aggre-
gate and fiduciary fund type [GASB 2300.121a]

e A general description of the principle purposes of the interfund
transfers [GASB 2300.1215]

e The intended purpose and amount of significant transfers that
either do not occur on a routine basis or are inconsistent with the
activities of the transferring fund [GASB 2300.121¢]

e For each major component unit, the nature and amount of any
significant transactions with other discretely presented component
units or with the primary government [GASB 2300.106p]

Do the notes disclose any interfund eliminations in fund financial state-
ments that are not apparent from headings in the statements? [GASB
2300.107m] G431 [l [l [l
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Net Position and Reconciliation Disclosure Requirements:

If the information is not apparent from the face of the financial state-
ments, do the notes disclose the following to the extent applicable:
[GASB 1800.141—.146, 2300.107¢cc, 2200.119—-.121, .154, .158; AAG-SLV
10.18-.20 and 10.22-.23]

Encumbrances, if significant, should be disclosed by major funds
and nonmajor funds in the aggregate in conjunction with required
disclosures about other significant commitments

Purpose for each major special revenue fund and the revenues and
other resources reported in each of those funds

Deficit fund balances of nonmajor governmental funds
Deficit net position of nonmajor enterprise funds

Whether the government considers restricted or unrestricted
amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance
is available and whether committed, assigned, or unassigned
amounts are considered to have been spent when an expenditure
is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any amounts in any
of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

The amount of the primary government’s net position that is re-
stricted by enabling legislation

Detailed explanations of the reconciliations between the fund and
government-wide financial statements

Details of fund balance classification in the aggregate on the face
of the balance sheet including amounts for the two nonspendable
components (that is, not in spendable form and legally or contrac-
tually required to be maintained intact) and specific purposes in-
formation (for restricted, committed, and assigned fund balances).

Donor-Restricted Endowments Disclosure Requirements:

Do the notes include the following disclosures related to donor-restricted
endowments: [GASB 2300.106 and .123]

The amounts of net appreciation on endowment investments
available for authorization for expenditure by the governing
board, and how those amounts that are reported within net posi-
tion

Applicable law regarding the ability to spend net appreciation of
investments

The policy for authorizing and spending investment income (for
instance, spending rate, total-return policy)

Future Revenues Pledged or Sold Disclosure Requirements:

For each period for which secured debt remains outstanding, do the notes
disclose the following in regard to specific revenues pledged: [GASB 48
par. 21; S20.118]

Identification of the specific revenue pledged and the approxi-
mate amount of the pledge (for example the remaining debt ser-
vice for the secured debt)
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o Identification of and general purpose for the debt secured by the
pledged revenue

e The period of time during which the pledged revenue will not be
available for other purposes

e The relationship or proportion of the pledged amount to the total
amount from the specific revenue stream

e A comparison of the pledged revenues recognized during the pe-
riod to the debt service requirements for the debt directly or indi-
rectly secured by those revenues

In the year of the sale of a future revenue stream, do the notes disclose
the following about the specific revenues sold: [GASB 48 par. 22 and
$20.119] G435 [ ] L]

o Identification of the specific revenue sold, and the approximate
amount sold, including the significant assumptions used in deter-
mining the approximate amount

e The period to which the sale applies

e The relationship or proportion of the sold amount to the total
amount for the specific revenue stream

e A comparison of the sale proceeds and the present value of the
future revenues sold, including the significant assumptions used
in determining present value

Other Disclosure Requirements:

If material, are the presentations appropriate and are disclosures adequate
regarding the following other disclosure requirements: G436 L] L] L]

e Condensed financial statements for major component units in the
component units column(s) (Major component units may be pre-
sented in one of the following three manners: (1) separate col-
umns in the entity-wide statements; (2) combining statements
after the basic fund statements before the footnotes; or (3) con-
densed financial statements in the footnotes.) [GASB 2600.108—
111]

e Accounting changes [GASB 2250.138.152]

e Annual pension cost, net pension obligation, and other pension
activities, and other plan and funding disclosures for employer
reporting [GASB 2300.106g, 2300.107#, P20]

e The legal or contractual maximum contributions rates, funding
policy disclosures, and for sole- and agent-defined benefit pen-
sion plans the funded status of the plan as of the most recent actu-
arial valuation [GASB 50]

e Annual OPEB costs, net OPEB obligation and other plan and fund-
ing disclosures for employer reporting [GASB 2300.1070 and
P50.105-.107]

e Pension funds and OPEB funds required disclosures for reporting
by plans [GASB 2300.107n, P20, Pe5, Pe6, P50, Po50]

e Public entity risk pools [GASB P020]

e Related party transactions, including the nature and amount of
significant transactions between the primary government and dis-
cretely presented component units or between component units
[GASB 2300.106¢ and .107f]
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Segment information for enterprise funds [GASB 2300.107¢ and
2500]

Detail of the government’s property tax calendar, including the
lien, levy, due and collection dates [GASB P70.109]

On-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries [GASB
2300.107x and N50.134]

Discounts and allowances that reduce gross revenues, when not
reported on the face of the financial statements [GASB
2300.107dd]

Details of the different types of deferred amounts of in-
flows/outflows of resources if significant components of the total
deferred amounts are aggregated on the face of the financial
statements [GASB 63]

Disaggregation of receivable and payable balances and receivable
balances not expected to be collected within one year [GASB
2300.119]

Nonexchange transactions, including grants, taxes, and contribu-
tions that are not recognized because they are not measurable
[GASB 2300.107k]

Nature and amount of inconsistencies in the financial statements
caused by transactions with component units having different
fiscal years or changes in fiscal years [GASB 2300.107¢ and
2600.119]

Risk management and related financing activities [GASB
2300.107a and C50.145-.146]

Description of termination benefit arrangements, significant
methods and assumptions used to determine termination benefit
expenses and liabilities, and, if not identifiable on the face of the
financial statements, the costs of termination benefits in the peri-
od obligated [GASB 2300.107h4 and T25.114—-.117]

Significant transactions or other events that are either unusual or
infrequent but not within the control of management [GASB
2300.107,2200.141-.144 and .159]

Sponsoring government disclosures about external investment
pools reported as investment trust funds [GASB 2300.107z and
In5.103)

Contingencies and Commitments Disclosures:

Are the following disclosures adequate regarding contingencies and com-
mitments, if applicable:

Do the notes disclose contingent liabilities not requiring accrual,
including guarantees, such as situations in which the entity is con-
tingently liable for proprietary fund or trust fund indebtedness (for
example, through a general obligation backing on enterprise fund
debt)? [NCGA 1 par. 46, as amended; GASB 10 par. 58 (GASB
Cod. Sec. 1500.114 and C50.115) or GASB 62 par. 107-110]

For unconditional purchase obligations that have not recognized on
the entity’s financial position statement(s), do the notes disclose

a. the nature and term of the obligation(s)?
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b. the amount of the fixed and determinable portion of the obliga-
tion(s) as of the date of the latest financial position statement in
the aggregate and, if determinable, for each of the five succeed-
ing fiscal years?

c¢. the nature of any variable components of the obligations(s)?

d. the amounts purchased under the obligation(s) (for example,
the take-or-pay or throughput contract) for each period which
an activity statement is presented? [Generally Accepted]

e Does the entity disclose unused letters of credit, assets pledged as
security for loans, and construction and other significant commit-
ments? [NCGA 1 par. 158, as amended (GASB Cod. Sec.
2300.106k); GASB 62 par. 113]

e Does the entity disclose conditions that raise a question about its
ability to continue in existence for a reasonable period of time and
viable plans to overcome these difficulties? [GASB 56 par. 19
(GASB Cod. Sec. 2250.117]

e Does the entity adequately disclose gain contingencies, with care to
avoid any misleading implications about the likelihood of realiza-
tion? [GASB 62 par. 112]

Subsequent Event Disclosures:

Do the financial statements include disclosure of significant subsequent
eve